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Accountable officer’s and chief finance
and accounting officer’s declaration

[image: image1.jpg]Accountable officer’s and chief finance and
accounting officer’s declaration

We certify that the attached financial statements for the Department of Health
and Human Services, including the Director of Housing, Mental Health Complaints
Commissioner, Mental Health Tribunal and the Commission for Children and
Young People have been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of
the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions,
Australian accounting standards and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the
Comprehensive Operating Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in
Equity, Cash Flow Statement and the notes forming part of- the financial
statements, presents fairly the financial transactions of the Department of Health
and Human Services during the year ended 30 June 2016 and financial position
of the Department at 30 June 2016.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render
any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or
inaccurate.

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on 16 September 2016.

Kym Peake
Secretary
Department of Health and Human Services

Melbourne
16 September 2016

Greg Stenton
Chief Finance and Accounting Officer
Department of Health and Human Services

Melbourne
16 September 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Secretary, Department of Health and Human Services

The Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2016 of the Department
of Health and Human Services which comprises the comprehensive operating statement, balance
sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the accountable officer's and chief finance
and accounting officer's declaration.

The Secretary’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the
financial reporting requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994, and for such internal control
as the Secretary determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report
based on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.
Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements
and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial report. The audit procedures selected depend on judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Secretary, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Auditing in the Public Interest
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Independence

The Auditor-General’'s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General
is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to
be exercised. In conducting the audit, | and my staff and delegates have complied with the applicable
independence requirements of the Australian Auditing Standards and relevant ethical
pronouncements.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Department of Health and Human Services as at 30 June 2016 and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards,

and the financial reporting requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994.

\

\\ v \\
MELBOURNE ANrew Greaves

23 September 2016 Auditor-General
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Comprehensive operating statement
for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

	
	Note
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Income from transactions
	
	
	

	Output appropriations
	3(a)
	12,901.7
	9,968.2

	Special appropriations
	3(b)
	1,341.2
	1,272.5

	Interest income
	4(a)
	9.4
	5.1

	Rental income and income from services
	4(b)
	476.6
	235.0

	Grants and other income transfers
	4(c)
	832.0
	652.8

	Other income
	4(d)
	367.2
	81.2

	Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	4(e)
	11.6
	0.5

	Total income from transactions
	
	15,939.8
	12,215.3

	Expenses from transactions
	
	
	

	Employee expenses
	5(a)
	1,191.2
	662.3

	Depreciation and amortisation
	5(b)
	280.7
	150.2

	Interest expense
	5(c)
	0.3
	10.7

	Rates to local authorities
	
	116.3
	56.4

	Maintenance
	
	200.1
	117.1

	Rental property lease expenses
	
	13.2
	5.5

	Tenant utilities and other expenses
	
	78.6
	39.2

	Home finance operating costs
	
	2.0
	0.9

	Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	5(d)
	11.9
	0.2

	Other operating expenses
	5(e)
	490.2
	396.5

	Grants and other expense transfers
	5(f)
	11,916.6
	9,831.7

	Capital asset charge
	
	1,016.8
	909.6

	Total expenses from transactions
	
	15,317.8
	12,180.3

	Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
	
	622.1
	35.0

	Other economic flows included in net result
	
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
	6(a)
	0.9
	(6.4)

	Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
	6(b)
	0.6
	1.8

	Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	6(c)
	(22.1)
	(27.4)

	Total other economic flows included in net result
	
	(20.6)
	(32.0)

	Net result for the year
	
	601.5
	3.0

	Other economic flows – other comprehensive income
	
	
	

	Items that will not be reclassified to net result
	
	
	

	Changes in physical asset revaluation reserve
	16(b)
	2,468.7
	59.4

	Remeasurement of superannuation defined benefit plans
	15(d)
	0.9
	3.3

	Total other economic flows – other comprehensive income
	
	2,469.6
	62.7

	Comprehensive result
	
	3,071.1
	65.7


The comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Balance sheet as at 30 June 2016

	
	Note
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Assets
	
	
	

	Financial assets
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	7
	230.8
	369.4

	Receivables
	8
	2,671.0
	2,080.4

	Loans
	9
	82.9
	80.0

	Short term investments – term deposits
	
	346.8
	121.7

	Total financial assets
	
	3,331.6
	2,651.5

	Non-financial assets
	
	
	

	Inventories
	
	–
	0.6

	Non-financial physical assets classified as held for sale
	10
	26.3
	1.0

	Property, plant and equipment
	11
	24,689.6
	22,347.5

	Intangible assets
	12
	69.3
	81.0

	Investments accounted for using the equity method
	29
	35.0
	35.0

	Prepayments
	
	11.4
	21.6

	Total non-financial assets
	
	24,831.6
	22,486.7

	Total assets
	
	28,163.2
	25,138.2

	Liabilities
	
	
	

	Payables
	13
	955.0
	1,026.7

	Borrowings
	14
	103.9
	103.3

	Provisions
	15
	483.4
	434.0

	Income in advance
	
	–
	38.0

	Total liabilities
	
	1,542.3
	1,602.0

	Net assets
	
	26,620.9
	23,536.2

	Equity
	
	
	

	Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
	16(a)
	1,697.2
	1,094.8

	Physical asset revaluation reserve
	16(b)
	2,545.1
	76.4

	Contributed capital
	16(c)
	22,378.5
	22,365.0

	Net worth
	
	26,620.9
	23,536.2

	Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
	21
	
	

	Commitments for expenditure
	22
	
	


The balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Statement of changes in equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

	
	Notes
	Physical asset revaluation reserve

$M
	Accumulated surplus/
(deficit)

$M
	Contributed capital
$M
	Total
$M

	Balance at 1 July 2014
	
	17.0
	1,088.5
	566.1
	1,671.6

	Machinery of Government transfer in
	16(c)
	–
	–
	21,728.8
	21,728.8

	Net result for the year
	16(a)
	–
	3.0
	–
	3.0

	Remeasurement of superannuation defined benefit plans
	16(a)
	–
	3.3
	–
	3.3

	Changes in physical asset revaluation reserve
	16(b)
	59.4
	–
	–
	59.4

	Capital contribution by Victorian State Government
	16(c)
	–
	–
	295.9
	295.9

	Capital contributions to Health agencies
	16(c)
	–
	–
	(225.8)
	(225.8)

	Balance at 30 June 2015
	
	76.4
	1,094.8
	22,365.0
	23,536.2

	Net result for the year
	16(a)
	–
	601.5
	–
	601.5

	Remeasurement of superannuation defined benefit plans
	16(a)
	–
	0.9
	–
	0.9

	Changes in physical asset revaluation reserve
	16(b)
	2,468.7
	–
	–
	2,468.7

	Capital contribution by Victorian State Government
	16(c)
	–
	–
	107.7
	107.7

	Capital contributed from asset transfers
	16(c)
	–
	–
	1.9
	1.9

	Capital contributions to Health agencies
	16(c)
	–
	–
	(96.0)
	(96.0)

	Balance at 30 June 2016
	
	2,545.1
	1,697.2
	22,378.5
	26,620.9


The statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Cash flow statement for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

	
	Note
	2016
$M
	2015

$M

	Cash flows from operating activities
	
	
	

	Receipts
	
	
	

	Receipts of output appropriations
	
	12,296.5
	9,559.6

	Receipts of special appropriations
	
	1,341.2
	1,272.5

	Receipts of funds from other authorities
	
	811.1
	746.4

	Rent received
	
	470.3
	225.5

	User charges received – rental properties
	
	5.0
	2.4

	Interest received
	
	9.2
	5.5

	Other receipts
	
	80.5
	66.6

	GST recovered from Australian Taxation Office (i)
	
	480.6
	499.1

	Total receipts
	
	15,494.2
	12,377.6

	Payments
	
	
	

	Payments of grants and other expense transfers
	
	(12,121.9)
	(10,095.1)

	Payments for employee benefits
	
	(1,185.1)
	(649.9)

	Payments for supplies and services
	
	(500.2)
	(362.4)

	Interest and other costs of finance paid
	
	(2.4)
	(13.0)

	Capital asset charge payments
	
	(1,016.8)
	(909.9)

	Rates to local authorities
	
	(117.1)
	(70.8)

	Maintenance
	
	(200.9)
	(144.9)

	Rental property lease expenses
	
	(13.3)
	(6.8)

	Tenant utilities and other expenses
	
	(79.2)
	(49.2)

	Home finance operating payments
	
	(1.9)
	(0.9)

	Other payments
	
	–
	(0.3)

	Total payments
	
	(15,238.9)
	(12,303.2)

	Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
	25
	255.3
	74.4

	Cash flows from investing activities
	
	
	

	Proceeds from the sale of non-financial assets
	
	165.8
	56.0

	Purchase of short term investments – term deposits
	
	(225.1)
	(53.3)

	Client loans repaid
	
	4.9
	2.7

	Payment for non-financial assets
	
	(334.2)
	(135.9)

	Client loans granted
	
	(7.3)
	(14.7)

	Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
	
	(395.9)
	(145.2)

	Cash flows from financing activities
	
	
	

	Advances received
	
	1.4
	12.1

	Repayment of advances
	
	–
	(0.6)

	Cash received from activity transferred in – MoG changes
	
	–
	347.2

	Owner contributions by Victorian Government – appropriation for capital expenditure purposes
	
	107.7
	7.0

	Payments of capital contributions
	
	(106.2)
	–

	Repayment of finance leases and borrowings
	
	(0.8)
	(3.4)

	Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
	
	2.0
	362.3

	Net increase/(decrease) in cash and deposits
	
	(138.5)
	291.5

	Cash and deposits at beginning of financial year
	
	369.4
	77.9

	Cash and deposits at the end of the financial year
	7
	230.8
	369.4


The cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Note:

(i) Goods and services tax (GST) recovered/paid from the Australian Taxation Office is presented on a net basis.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

These annual financial statements represent the general purpose financial statements for the Department of Health and Human Services (the department) for the year ended 30 June 2016.

The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about the department’s stewardship of the resources entrusted to it.

To gain a better understanding of the terminology used in this report, a glossary of terms and style conventions can be found in Note 1(x).

(a) Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) including Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). In particular, they are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting and the Minister for Finance’s Financial Reporting Directions (FRD). Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable to not-for-profit entities have been applied.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

These annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services on 16 September 2016.

(b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the department.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

In the application of AAS, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates, relate to:

· the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 1(l));

· superannuation expense (refer to Note 1(g));

· assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on the likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(m)); and

· liability for outstanding insurance claims (refer to Note 1(m)).

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for:

· the revaluation of certain non-financial assets (subsequent to acquisition, non-financial assets are measured at their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses); and
· financial instruments which are measured at fair value with changes reflected in ‘other economic flows’ in the comprehensive operating statement.

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their fair value. Historical cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for these assets.

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and relevant FRDs, the department determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurements (such as property, plant and equipment and financial instruments) and for non-recurring fair value measurements (such as non-financial physical assets held for sale).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

· Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

· Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

· Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the department has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, the department determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is the department’s independent valuation agency.

The department, in conjunction with the VGV, monitors the changes in the fair value of each asset and liability through relevant data sources to determine whether revaluation is required.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 and the comparative information presented for year ended 30 June 2015.

As a consequence of the Machinery of Government change, the comparative amounts for 2014–15 in the Comprehensive Operating Statement reflect twelve months of the former Department of Health and six months of the former Department of Human Services and the Director of Housing. In comparison, the figures for 2015–16 contain a full twelve months of the combined Department of Health and Human Services and the Director of Housing.

(c) Reporting entity

The financial statements cover the Department of Health and Human Services as an individual reporting entity. The department is a government department of the State of Victoria, established pursuant to an order made by the Premier under the Administrative Arrangements Act (No. 202) 2009. The Department of Health and Human Services is the administrative agency acting on behalf of the Crown. These financial statements include all controlled activities and entities of the department.

The principal address of the Department of Health and Human Services is:

50 Lonsdale Street

Melbourne, Victoria 3000.

A description of the department’s operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations which does not form part of these financial statements.

Objectives and funding

The department’s objectives are to achieve the best health and wellbeing for all Victorians and to improve people’s lives and reduce their experience of disadvantage by integrating health and social policies, programs and services. The department works with the community to provide better access to health, aged care, mental health and drug services while also providing housing and community services to support and protect Victorians most in need.

The department is predominantly funded by accrual-based parliamentary appropriations for the provision of outputs that are further described in Note 2.

Outputs of the department

Information about the department’s output activities, and the income, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are reliably attributable to those output activities, is set out in the output activities schedule (refer to Note 2).

Information about income, expenses, assets and liabilities administered by the department are given in the schedule of administered income and expenses, and the schedule of administered assets and liabilities (refer to Notes 23 and 24).

(d) Basis of consolidation

In accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements:

· the financial statements of the department incorporate assets and liabilities of all reporting entities controlled by the department as at 30 June 2016, and their income and expenses for the reporting period in which control existed; and
· the financial statements exclude bodies within the department’s portfolio that are not controlled by the department and therefore are not consolidated. Bodies and activities that are administered are not controlled and not consolidated.

Where control of an entity is obtained during the financial year, its results are included in the comprehensive operating statement from the date on which control commenced. Where control ceases during the financial year, the entity’s results are included for that part of the period in which control existed. Where dissimilar accounting policies are adopted by entities and their effect is considered material, adjustments are made to ensure consistent policies are adopted in these financial statements.

In the process of preparing the financial statements for the department, all material transactions and balances between entities are eliminated.

Pursuant to section 53(1) (b) of the Financial Management Act 1994, the Minister for Finance granted approval for the Department of Health and Human Services to prepare financial statements incorporating the following entities which form part of the Department of Health and Human Services reporting entity:

· Mental Health Complaints Commissioner;
· Mental Health Tribunal;
· the Director of Housing; and
· Commission for Children and Young People.

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions (that is contributed capital and its repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses of the department.

Administered items

The department administers but does not control certain resources on behalf of the State. It is accountable for the transactions involving those administered resources, but does not have the discretion to deploy those resources for its own benefit or for achievement of the department’s objectives. For these resources, the department acts only on behalf of the State. Administered resources are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.

Administered income includes taxes, fees and fines and the proceeds from the sale of administered surplus land and buildings. Administered assets include government income earned but yet to be collected. Administered liabilities include government expenses incurred but yet to be paid.

Transactions and balances relating to these administered resources are not recognised as departmental income, expenses, assets or liabilities within the body of the financial statements, but are disclosed in Notes 23 and 24. Except as otherwise disclosed, administered items are accounted for on the same basis and using the same accounting policies as for departmental items in the financial statements. Both the controlled and administered items of the department are consolidated in the financial statements of the State.

National Health Reform

Under the National Health Reform Agreement states and territories have moved towards a nationally consistent approach to activity-based funding for public health services. The Victoria State Pool Account, which forms part of the National Health Funding Pool, receives all Commonwealth and State activity-based funding (‘ABF’), ensuring greater transparency and accountability in funding to health services. Payments out of the Victoria State Pool Account are made on instruction by the State. The department records these transactions and balances as administered items as they are not controlled.

The State pays health services (including small rural hospitals) directly for block funded services.

Funds held in trust – other trust activities on behalf of parties external to the Victorian Government

The department has responsibility for transactions and balances relating to trust funds on behalf of third parties external to the Victorian Government. Income, expenses, assets and liabilities managed on behalf of third parties are not recognised in these financial statements as they are managed on a fiduciary and custodial basis, and therefore are not controlled by the department or the Victorian Government. These transactions and balances are reported in Note 28 together with transactions and balances relating to trust accounts controlled by the department.

(e) Scope and presentation of financial statements

Comprehensive operating statement

The comprehensive operating statement comprises three components, being ‘net result from transactions’ (or ‘net operating balance’), ‘other economic flows included in net result’ as well as ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’. The sum of the former two represents the net result for the year. The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AASs.

‘Other economic flows’ are changes arising from market re-measurements. They include:

· gains and losses from disposal of non-financial assets;
· revaluation and impairment of non-financial physical and intangible assets;
· re-measurement of defined benefit superannuation plan obligations; and
· fair value changes of financial instruments.

This classification is consistent with the whole of government reporting format and is allowed under AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.

Balance sheet

Assets and liabilities are presented in liquidity order with assets aggregated into financial assets and non-financial assets.

Current and non-current assets and liabilities are disclosed in the notes, where relevant. In general, non-current assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled more than 12 months after the reporting period. However, the provisions of employee benefits are classified as current liabilities if the department does not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabilities within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Statement of changes in equity

The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of non-owner and owner changes in equity from opening balances at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period. It also separately identifies changes due to amounts recognised in the ‘comprehensive result’ and amounts recognised in ‘other economic flows – other movements in equity’ related to ‘transactions with owner in its capacity as owner’.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating, investing, or financing activities. This classification is consistent with the requirements of AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are included as current borrowings in the balance sheet.

Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand dollars unless otherwise stated. Total and subtotal figures in the financial statements may not equate to the face value of summed figures due to rounding. Please refer to the end of Note 1(x) for a style convention for explanations of minor discrepancies resulting from rounding.

(f) Income from transactions

Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the department and the income can be reliably measured at fair value.

Appropriation income

Appropriated income becomes controlled and is recognised by the department when it is appropriated from the consolidated fund by the Victorian Parliament and applied to the purposes defined under the relevant Appropriations Act. Additionally, the department is permitted under Section 29 of the Financial Management Act 1994 to have certain income annotated to the annual appropriation. The income which forms part of a Section 29 agreement is recognised by the department and the receipts paid into the consolidated fund as an administered item. At the point of income recognition, Section 29 provides for an equivalent amount to be added to the annual appropriation. Examples of receipts which can form part of a Section 29 agreement are Commonwealth specific purpose grants (refer to Note 27) and the proceeds from the sale of assets.

Where applicable, amounts disclosed as income are net of returns, allowances, and taxes. All amounts of income over which the department does not have control are disclosed as administered income in the schedule of administered income and expenses (refer to Note 23). Income is recognised for each of the department’s major activities as follows:

Output appropriations

Income from the outputs the department provides to the Government is recognised when those outputs have been delivered and the relevant Minister has certified delivery of those outputs in accordance with specified performance criteria.

Special appropriations

Under Sections 3.6.11, 4.4.11, 4.6.8, 5.4.6, and 6A.4.4(1) of the Gambling Regulation Act No. 114 of 2003, and Section 114 of the Casino Control Act No. 47 of 1991, income related to the Hospital and Charities Fund and Mental Hospital Fund is recognised when the amounts appropriated for that purpose are due and payable by the department. The department also receives special appropriations for various purposes approved under Section 10 of the Financial Management Act 1994 (refer to Note 3(b)).

Interest income

Interest income includes interest received on bank term deposits and other investments. Interest income is recognised using the accruals method which allocates the interest over the relevant period.

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses on the revaluation of investments do not form part of income from transactions, but are reported either as part of income from other economic flows in the net result or as unrealised gains or losses taken directly to equity, forming part of the total change in net worth in the comprehensive result.

Rental income and income from services

Rental income

Rental income arising from tenancy operating agreements is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the ongoing agreements. This is subject to annual review. Rental rebates or subsidies provided to tenants are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreements. These are subject to biannual review.

Income from the supply of services

Income from the supply of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion basis. The income is recognised when:

· the amount of the income, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be reliably measured; and

· it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the department.

Under the stage of completion method, income is recognised by reference to labour hours supplied or to labour hours supplied as a percentage of total services to be performed in each annual reporting period.

Grants and other income transfers

Income from grants (other than contribution by owners) is recognised when the department obtains control over the contribution.

Where such grants are payable into the consolidated fund, they are reported as administered income (refer to Note 1(d) and (i)). For reciprocal grants (i.e. equal value is given back by the department to the provider), the department is deemed to have assumed control when it has satisfied its performance obligations under the terms of the grant. For non-reciprocal grants, the department is deemed to have assumed control when the grant is receivable or received. Conditional grants may be reciprocal or non-reciprocal depending on the terms of the grant.

Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

Contributions of resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the department obtains control over them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions, unless received from another government department or agency as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such a transfer is recognised at its carrying value. Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if not received as a donation.

Other income

Other income includes income received from departmental controlled trust funds and is recognised when the department gains control over the funds.

Other income includes income received from treasury trust and from services provided to interstate patients. Other income from services provided to interstate patients is recognised as per agreements for cost reimbursements established between the states on a state by state basis.

Where income is received, but services are yet to be provided, it is disclosed as income in advance in the balance sheet. When the services are provided, the balance sheet amount is recorded as revenue.

(g) Expenses from transactions

Expenses from transactions are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses include all costs related to employment including salaries and wages, leave entitlements, fringe benefits tax, redundancy payments, WorkCover premiums and superannuation contributions. These are recognised when incurred, except for contributions in respect to defined benefit superannuation plans.

Superannuation

Employees of the department are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the department contributes to defined benefit and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees. The amount expensed is the employer contribution for members of these plans that are paid or payable during the reporting period.

The defined benefit plans provide benefits based on years of service and final average salary. The amount expensed in relation to employer contributions for members of defined benefit superannuation plans represents the accrual of benefits during the reporting period. The level of these contributions will vary depending upon the relevant rules of each plan, and is based upon actuarial advice.

Excluding former employees of the Director of Housing, the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) in their annual financial statements recognises, on behalf of the State as the sponsoring employer, the net defined benefit liability related to the members of these plans as an administered liability. Refer to DTF’s annual financial statements for more detailed disclosures in relation to these plans. Note 15(d) also provides further details.

Depreciation and amortisation

All buildings, plant, equipment, vehicles and other non-current physical assets that have finite useful lives are depreciated, except for items under operating leases, assets held for sale and land. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any estimated residual value, over its estimated useful life.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease or estimated useful life, whichever is the shorter, using the straight-line method.

Land, which is considered to have an indefinite useful life, is not depreciated. Depreciation is not recognised in respect of land because service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the financial year.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, and adjustments made where appropriate.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation for the current and prior years:

	Asset class
	Useful life

	Buildings
	

	Structure shell building fabric
	45 to 60 years

	Site engineering services and central plant
	20 to 30 years

	Central plant
	

	Fit out
	20 to 30 years

	Trunk reticulated building systems
	30 to 40 years

	Plant, equipment and vehicles
	3 to 10 years

	Leasehold improvements
	5 to 10 years

	Intangible assets
	4 to 8 years

	Assets under lease
	3 years


Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised as an expense from transactions, on a systematic (typically straight-line) basis over the asset’s useful life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each annual reporting period. In addition, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there are indicators that the intangible asset is impaired. If so, the asset is tested as to whether its carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount.

Intangible produced assets with finite useful lives are amortised as an expense from transactions on a systematic basis over the asset’s useful life.

Consumption of intangible non-produced assets with finite useful lives are not classified as a transaction but as amortisation. Consequently, the amortisation is included as an ‘other economic flow’ in the net result.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised. However, all intangible assets are assessed for impairment annually.

Interest expense

Interest expense is recognised in the period in which it is incurred. Refer to Glossary of terms and style convention in Note 1(x) for an explanation of interest expense items.

Grants and other transfers

Grants and other transfers to third parties (other than contribution to owners) are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are paid or payable. They include transactions such as grants, subsidies and other transfer payments to public and denominational hospitals, other state government agencies, local councils and non-government agencies and individuals and the State contribution to the National Health Funding Pool. Refer to Glossary of terms and style conventions in Note 1(x) for an explanation of grants and other transfers.

State funding for Activity Based Funding initiatives is paid to the National Health Funding Pool for payment to health agencies. There are, however, a range of grant payments that remain out of scope for National Health Reform, such as aged care subsidies, home and community care payments and community based drug and alcohol services that continue to be paid directly to health agencies.

Capital asset charge

The capital asset charge is calculated on the budgeted carrying amount of applicable non-financial physical assets.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses generally represent the day to day running costs incurred in normal operations and include:

Supplies and services

Supplies and services are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Rental operating costs

Rental operating costs include maintenance, rates and charges, tenant utilities and operating expenses. These costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Home finance operating costs

Home finance operating costs represent fees payable to external providers for such items as repayment collection via the Australian Post Office, telephone services, credit checks, legal services and any other costs incurred to administer the loan portfolio, lending programs and Home Renovation Inspection Service. These costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration

Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the transferee obtains control over them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions.

Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if not donated.

(h) Other economic flows included in net result

Other economic flows measure the change in volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not result from transactions. These include:

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:

Revaluation gain/(losses) of non-financial physical assets

Refer to Note 1(l).

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets

Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal and is the difference between the proceeds and the carrying value of the asset at the time.

Amortisation of non-produced intangible assets

Intangible non-produced assets with finite lives are amortised as an ‘other economic flow’ on a systematic (typically straight-line) basis over the asset’s useful life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (and intangible assets not yet available for use) are tested annually for impairment (as described below) and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

All other non-financial assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment, except for:

· inventories (refer to Note 1(l)); and
· non-financial assets classified as held for sale (refer to Note 1(l)).

If there is an indication of impairment, the asset concerned is tested as to whether its carrying value exceeds its possible recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is written off as an ‘other economic flow’, except to the extent that the write-down can be debited to a physical asset revaluation reserve applicable to that class of asset.

If there is an indication that there has been a reversal in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.

It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell.

Refer to Note 1(l) in relation to the recognition and measurement of non-financial assets.

Net actuarial gains/(losses) on superannuation defined benefit plans

Net actuarial gains or losses reflect the change in superannuation liability that arises due to differences between the assumptions used to calculate the superannuation expense from transactions and actual outcomes. The effect of any change in actuarial assumptions during the period is also included.

Net actuarial gains or losses are recognised in the period in which they occur.

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory receivables / payables

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory receivables/payables includes:

· realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial instruments at fair value;
· impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost; and
· disposals of financial assets and derecognition of financial liabilities.

Revaluations of financial instruments at fair value

Refer to Note 1(j).

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or losses from:

· reclassifications of amounts from reserves to accumulated surplus or net result due to disposal or derecognition or reclassification;
· the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions; and
· other revaluations on the value of outstanding insurance claims and liabilities.

Bad and doubtful debts

Bad and doubtful debts for financial assets are assessed on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off by mutual consent are classified as a transaction expense. Those written off unilaterally and the allowance for doubtful receivables are classified as ‘other economic flows’.

(i) Administered income

Taxes, fines and regulatory fees

The department does not gain control over assets arising from taxes, fines and regulatory fees, consequently no income is recognised in the department’s financial statements.

The department collects these amounts on behalf of the State. Accordingly, the amounts are disclosed as income in the schedule of administered items (refer to Note 23).

Grants from Commonwealth Government

The department’s administered grants mainly comprise funds provided by the Commonwealth to assist the State Government in meeting general or specific service delivery obligations, primarily for the purpose of aiding in the financing of the operations of the recipient, capital purposes and/or for on-passing to other recipients.

Grants are recognised as income when the department gains control of the underlying assets. Where such grants are payable into the consolidated fund, they are reported as administered income. For reciprocal grants, the department is deemed to have assumed control when the performance has occurred under the grant. For non-reciprocal grants, the department is deemed to have assumed control when the grant is received or receivable. Conditional grants may be reciprocal or non-reciprocal depending on the terms of the grant.

Commonwealth grants are disclosed as income in the schedule of administered items (refer to Note 23).

(j) Financial instruments

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of the department’s activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation. For example, statutory receivables arising from taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the definition of financial instruments as they do not arise under contract. However, guarantees issued by the Treasurer on behalf of the department are financial instruments because, although authorised under statute, the terms and conditions for each financial guarantee may vary and are subject to an agreement.

Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, a distinction is made between those financial assets and financial liabilities that meet the definition of financial instruments in accordance with AASB 132 and those that do not.

The following refers to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.

Categories of non-derivative financial instruments
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market. These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Receivables are measured at amortised cost, less any impairment.

The effective interest method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocates interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Loans and receivables include cash and deposits (refer to Note 1(k)), term deposits with maturity greater than three months, trade receivables, loans and other receivables, but not statutory receivables.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial instrument liabilities are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method.

Financial instrument liabilities measured at amortised cost include all of the department’s contractual payables, deposits held and advances received, and interest-bearing arrangements.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial instrument assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the department has a legal right to offset the amounts and intend either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(k) Financial assets

Cash and deposits

Cash and deposits recognised in the balance sheet, including cash equivalents, comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid investments (with a maturity of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are included as borrowings in the balance sheet.

Receivables

Receivables consist of:

· contractual receivables, which include mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to health agencies and accrued investment income; and
· statutory receivables, which include predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits recoverable.

Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables. Statutory receivables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments because they do not arise from a contract.

Receivables owing from the Victorian Government are held by the Department of Treasury and Finance and accrue no interest. Other receivables have normal credit terms, which are generally 30 days.

Receivables are subject to impairment testing as described below. A provision for doubtful receivables is recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified.

For the measurement principle of receivables, refer to Note 1(j).

Investments and other financial assets

The department classifies its investments as loans and receivables.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

Any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement as a transaction.

Investments accounted for using the equity method

An associate is an entity over which the department exercises significant influence, but not control.

The investment in the associate is accounted for in the financial statements using the equity method. Under this method, the investment in the associate is recognised at cost on initial recognition, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased in subsequent years to recognise the department’s share of the profits or losses of the associate after the date of acquisition. The department’s share of the profits or losses is recognised in the department’s net result as other economic flows. The share of post-acquisition movements in revaluation surpluses and any other reserves is recognised in both the comprehensive operating statement and the statement of changes in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment, including dividends received or receivable from the associate.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the department, via its joint control of the arrangements, has rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for in the financial statements using the equity method, as applied to investments in associates and are disclosed as required by AASB 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

· the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
· the department retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
· the department has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the department has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the asset is recognised to the extent of the department’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the department assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets are impaired. All financial instrument assets are subject to annual review for impairment.

Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off by mutual consent are classified as a transaction expense. The allowance for doubtful receivables and bad debts not written off by mutual consent are classified as ‘other economic flows’ in the net result (refer to Note 1(h)). The majority of debts are housing rental debtors. Due to the nature of the debt, long term payment plans have been implemented.

The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets which are not financial instruments, the department applies professional judgement in assessing materiality and using estimates, averages and computational shortcuts in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

(l) Non-financial assets

Inventories

Inventories include goods held for distribution and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Non-financial assets classified as held for sale, including disposal group assets

Non-financial physical assets (including disposal group assets), are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

This condition is regarded as met only when:

· the asset is available for immediate use in the current condition; and
· the sale is highly probable and the asset’s sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to be completed within twelve months from the date of classification.

Non-financial assets (including disposal groups), and related liabilities and financial assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation or amortisation.

Property, plant and equipment

All non-financial physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal consideration, the cost is the asset’s fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of a machinery of government change are transferred at their carrying amount. More details about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of non-financial physical assets are discussed in Note 11.

The initial cost of non-financial physical assets under a finance lease is measured at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

Non-financial physical assets such as Crown land and buildings (including those owned by the Director of Housing) are measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made of any legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that the restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best uses.

The fair value of plant, equipment and vehicles is normally determined by reference to the asset’s depreciated replacement cost. For these assets, the existing depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for depreciated replacement cost because of the short lives of the assets concerned.

Certain assets are acquired under finance leases, which may form part of a service concession arrangement. Refer to Notes 1(n), 1(p) and 1(q) for more information.

For the accounting policy on impairment of non-financial physical assets, refer to impairment of non-financial assets under Note 1(h).

Leasehold improvements

The cost of leasehold improvements is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements.

Revaluations of non-financial physical assets

Non-financial physical assets are measured at fair value on a cyclical basis, in accordance with the Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Minister for Finance. A full revaluation normally occurs every five years, based on the asset’s government purpose classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. Independent valuers are generally used to conduct these scheduled revaluations. Any interim revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs.

A managerial revaluation of the department’s property asset class was undertaken in 2015–16 in accordance with FRD103F which specifies that ‘...a managerial revaluation will be performed in non-scheduled years, where the cumulative movement in indexed valuations is ‘material’ (greater than 10%)’. The cumulative movement for the department’s land asset class was calculated as being 19.5%, and a revaluation was performed using the indexed valuations provided by the Valuer-General Victoria. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2016. The cumulative movement in the department’s building asset class was below the 10% threshold needed to trigger an interim managerial revaluation.

Revaluation increases or decreases arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.

Net revaluation increases (where the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation) are recognised in ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’ and accumulated in equity under the physical asset revaluation reserve. However, the net revaluation increase is recognised in the net result to the extent that it reverses a net revaluation decrease in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment previously recognised as an expense (other economic flows) in the net result.

Net revaluation decreases are recognised in ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the physical asset revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, the net revaluation decreases are recognised immediately as other economic flows in the net result. The net revaluation decrease recognised in ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’ reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the physical asset revaluation surplus.

Revaluation increases and decreases relating to individual assets within the same class of property, plant and equipment, are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes. The physical asset revaluation reserve is not transferred to accumulated surplus/(deficit) on derecognition of the relevant asset.

The written down replacement cost has been considered as fair value for plant and equipment as at 30 June 2016.

Non-financial physical assets constructed by the department

The cost of non-financial physical assets constructed by the department includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project, and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to the department.

When the recognition criteria in AASB138 Intangible Assets are met, internally generated intangible assets are recognised and measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Refer to Note 1(g) and Note 1(h).

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following are demonstrated:

· the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
· an intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
· the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
· the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
· the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and
· the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period as incurred.

Other non-financial assets

Prepayments

Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods and services or that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.

(m) Liabilities

Payables

Payables consist of:

· contractual payables, such as accounts payable, and other sundry liabilities. Accounts payable represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the department prior to the end of the reporting period that are unpaid, and arise when the department becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services; and
· statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.

Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost (refer to Note 1(j)). Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and are not included in financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.

Borrowings

All interest bearing liabilities are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less directly attributable transaction costs (refer also to Note 1(n)).

The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the department has categorised its interest-bearing liabilities as financial liabilities at amortised cost. (Refer to Note 1(j)). Any difference between the initially recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in the net result over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The department determines the classification of interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the department has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be reliably measured.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, using discount rates that reflect the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be received from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Other provisions mainly include a liability for outstanding insurance claims (refer to Note 15), which is independently assessed by an actuary appointed by the Victorian Department of Treasury and Finance.

Employee benefits

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.

Salaries and wages, and annual leave

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits, and annual leave are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’ because the department does not have an unconditional right to defer their settlement.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for salaries and wages and annual leave are measured at:

· nominal value – if the department expects to wholly settle within twelve months; or
· present value – if the department does not expect to wholly settle within twelve months.

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

Current liability – unconditional long service leave

Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability even where the department does not expect to settle the liability within twelve months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within twelve months.

The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:

· nominal value – if the department expects to wholly settle within twelve months; or
· present value – if the department does not expect to wholly settle within twelve months.

Non-current liability – conditional long service leave

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability because there is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value.

Any gain or loss following the revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond interest rates for which it is then recognised as an other economic flow (refer to Note 1(h)).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee decides to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The department recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than twelve months after the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Superannuation

The department, in respect to former employees of the Director of Housing, is required to pay into the Consolidated Fund an amount to cover the government’s contribution to the Government Superannuation Office for the shortfall of superannuation benefits paid to staff who retired or resigned on or before 14 December 1987 or were employed by the Director of Housing as at 14 December 1987 and retired or resigned prior to or on 30 June 1994. The present value of the unfunded superannuation relates to the Director of Housing’s obligation as calculated by the government appointed actuary. The amount expensed in respect of unfunded superannuation represents the contributions made by the department to the superannuation fund, adjusted by the movement in the liability or asset (refer to Note 15(d)).

Employee benefits on-costs

Employee benefits on-costs (such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation) are recognised separately from the provision for employee benefits.

Make-good provisions

Make-good provisions are recognised when the department has contractual obligations to remove leasehold improvements from leased properties and restore the leased premises to their original condition at the end of the lease term. The related expenses of making good such properties are recognised when the leasehold improvements are made.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised as an ‘other economic flow’ in the comprehensive operating statement.

(n) Leases

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment.

Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Department as lessee

At the commencement of the lease term, finance leases are initially recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The leased asset is accounted for as a non-financial physical asset and is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease.

If there is certainty that the department will obtain ownership of the leased asset by the end of the lease term, the asset shall be depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Minimum finance lease payments are apportioned between the reduction of the outstanding lease liability, and the periodic finance expense calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Contingent rentals associated with finance leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Department as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or the timing of the payments.

In the event that lease incentives are given to the lessee, the aggregate cost of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern over which the economic benefit of the leased asset is diminished.

Department as lessee

Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset. The leased asset is not recognised in the balance sheet.

All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or the timing of payments.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, the aggregate cost of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(o) Equity

Contributions by owners

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions, contributions by owners (that is, contributed capital and its repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses of the department.

Additions to net assets which have been designated as contributions by owners are recognised as contributed capital. Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions to or distributions by owners have also been designated as contributions by owners.

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions by owners. Transfers of net liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to owners.

(p) Commitments

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are disclosed by way of a disclosure note (refer to Note 22) at their nominal value and inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet.

(q) Service concession arrangements

The department sometimes enters into certain arrangements with private sector participants to design and construct or upgrade assets used to provide public services. These arrangements are typically complex and usually include the provision of operational and maintenance services for a specified period of time. These arrangements are often referred to as either Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) or Service Concession Arrangements (SCAs).

SCAs usually take one of two main forms. In the more common form, the department pays the operator over the period of the arrangement, subject to specified performance criteria being met. At the date of commitment to the principal provisions of the arrangement, these estimated periodic payments are allocated between a component related to the design and construction or upgrading of the asset and components related to the ongoing operation and maintenance of the asset. The former component is accounted for as a lease payment in accordance with the lease policy (refer to Note 1(n)). The remaining components are accounted for as commitments for operating costs which are expensed as they are incurred. Refer to Note 22 for information of significant commitments of the department.

The department has entered into five outsourcing arrangements for public hospitals.

These arrangements are Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) and relate to the building of new facilities for Casey Hospital, the Royal Women’s Hospital, the Royal Children’s Hospital, the Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre and Bendigo Hospital. Each hospital is operated by the public sector. The arrangements are complex and require the department’s private sector partners to finance, design, construct and maintain the new hospital buildings, as well as providing some ancillary services for a period of 25 years. In turn the department is required to make monthly or quarterly service payments which are subject to abatement should the services not meet the specified Key Performance Indicators. The general characteristics of these arrangements are comparable to a finance lease. The service payments are predominantly made up of a component for principal and interest related to the private financing of the construction of the hospital facility and a component for facilities maintenance and other services such as security and cleaning.

The department makes quarterly cash payments on behalf of the hospitals which it records as a grant expense to hospitals. The hospitals record and report all of the obligations (including the finance lease liability and operating payments) associated with the project. These arrangements are supported by documentation which records how the parties will collaborate and each party’s respective rights and obligations in connection with the project.

There is currently no authoritative accounting guidance applicable to the grantor (the department) on the recognition and measurement of the right of the department to receive assets from such concession arrangements. In the absence of any guidance, there has been no change to existing policy and those assets are not currently recognised by the department. The completed assets and corresponding liabilities are recognised by the health agencies that are party to the agreements.

(r) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of a disclosure note (refer to Note 21) and, if quantifiable, are stated at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

(s) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, except where GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable, to the ATO are presented as operating cash flows.

Commitments are presented inclusive of GST.

(t) Comparative information

Where necessary the previous year’s figures have been reclassified to facilitate comparison. Adjustments were made to the comparatives. These are noted throughout the financial statements.

(u) Events after the reporting period

Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Where the transactions result from an agreement between the department and other parties, the transactions are only recognised when the agreement is irrevocable at or before the end of the reporting period. Adjustments are made to amounts recognised in the financial statements for events which occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue, where those events provide information about conditions which existed at the reporting date. Note disclosure is made about events between the end of the reporting period and the date the financial statements are authorised for issue where the events relate to conditions which arose after the end of the reporting period that are considered to be of material interest.

(v) Accounting standards and interpretations

Certain accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2016 reporting period. The Department of Treasury and Finance assesses the impact of these standards and advises departments of their applicability and early adoption where appropriate.

As at 30 June 2016, the following standards and interpretations (applicable to departments) had been issued but were not mandatory for the financial year ended 30 June 2016. The department has not, and does not intend to, adopt these standards early.

	Standard/
Interpretation
	Summary
	Applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on
	Impact on public sector entity financial statements

	AASB 9 Financial Instruments
	The key changes include the simplified requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, a new hedging accounting model and a revised impairment loss model to recognise impairment losses earlier, as opposed to the current approach that recognises impairment only when incurred.
	1 Jan 2018
	The assessment has identified that the financial impact of available for sale (AFS) assets will now be reported through other comprehensive income (OCI) and no longer recycled to the profit and loss.

While the preliminary assessment has not identified any material impact arising from AASB 9, it will continue to be monitored and assessed.

	AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010)
	The requirements for classifying and measuring financial liabilities were added to AASB 9. The existing requirements for the classification of financial liabilities and the ability to use the fair value option have been retained. However, where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities the change in fair value is accounted for as follows:

· The change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk is presented in other comprehensive income (OCI); and

· Other fair value changes are presented in profit and loss. If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes in credit risk are also presented in profit or loss.
	1 Jan 2018
	The assessment has identified that the amendments are likely to result in earlier recognition of impairment losses and at more regular intervals.

Changes in own credit risk in respect of liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss will now be presented within other comprehensive income (OCI).

Hedge accounting will be more closely aligned with common risk management practices making it easier to have an effective hedge.

For entities with significant lending activities, an overhaul of related systems and processes may be needed.

	AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [Part E Financial Instruments]
	Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB’s decision to defer the mandatory application date of AASB 9 to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 as a consequence of Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting, and to amend reduced disclosure requirements.
	1 Jan 2018
	This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 9 to the 2018–19 reporting period in accordance with the transition requirements.

	AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
	Amends various AASs to incorporate the consequential amendments arising from the issuance of AASB 9.
	1 Jan 2018
	The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public sector.

	AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
	AASB 14 permits first-time adopters of Australian Accounting Standards who conduct rate-regulated activities to continue to account for amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with their previous GAAP.
	1 Jan 2016
	The assessment has indicated that there is no expected impact, as those that conduct rate-regulated activities have already adopted Australian Accounting Standards.

	AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
	The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a customer.
	1 Jan 2018
	The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASB 15 may result in changes to the timing and amount of revenue recorded in the financial statements. The Standard will also require additional disclosures on service revenue and contract modifications.

A potential impact will be the upfront recognition of revenue from licenses that cover multiple reporting periods. Revenue that was deferred and amortised over a period may now need to be recognised immediately as a transitional adjustment against the opening returned earnings if there are no former performance obligations outstanding.

	AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15
	Amends the measurement of trade receivables and the recognition of dividends.

Trade receivables, that do not have a significant financing component, are to be measured at their transaction price, at initial recognition.

Dividends are recognised in the profit and loss only when:

· the entity’s right to receive payment of the dividend is established;

· it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and

· the amount can be measured reliably.
	1 Jan 2017, except amendments to AASB 9 (Dec 2009) and AASB 9 (Dec 2010) apply from 1 Jan 2018
	The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public sector.

	AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15
	This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 from 1 January 2017 to 1 January 2018.
	1 Jan 2018
	This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 15 to the 2018–19 reporting period in accordance with the transition requirements.

	AASB 2016-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarifications to AASB 15
	This Standard amends AASB 15 to clarify the requirements on identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations and the timing of recognising revenue from granting a licence. The amendments require:

· A promise to transfer to a customer a good or service that is ‘distinct’ to be recognised as a separate performance obligation;

· For items purchased online, the entity is a principal if it obtains control of the good or service prior to transferring to the customer; and

· For licences identified as being distinct from other goods or services in a contract, entities need to determine whether the licence transfers to the customer over time (right to use) or at a point in time (right to access).
	1 Jan 2018
	The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public sector, other than the impact identified in AASB 15.

	AASB 16 Leases
	The key changes introduced by AASB 16 include the recognition of most operating leases (which are current not recognised) on balance sheet.
	1 Jan 2019
	The assessment has indicated that as most operating leases will come on balance sheet, recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities will cause net debt to increase.

Depreciation of lease assets and interest on lease liabilities will be recognised in the income statement with marginal impact on the operating surplus.

The amounts of cash paid for the principal portion of the lease liability will be presented within financing activities and the amounts paid for the interest portion will be presented within operating activities in the cash flow statement.

No change for lessors.

	AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & AASB 138]
	Amends AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible Assets to:

· establish the principle for the basis of depreciation and amortisation as being the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset;

· prohibit the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation or amortisation of an asset, tangible or intangible, because revenue generally reflects the pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating the business, rather than the consumption through the use of the asset.
	1 Jan 2016
	The assessment has indicated that there is no expected impact as the revenue-based method is not used for depreciation and amortisation.

	AASB 2014-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128]
	Amends AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements to allow entities to use the equity method of accounting for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements.
	1 Jan 2016
	The assessment indicates that there is no expected impact as the entity will continue to account for the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates using the cost method as mandated if separate financial statements are presented in accordance with FRD 113A.

	AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture [AASB 10 & AASB 128]
	AASB 2014-10 amends AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates to ensure consistent treatment in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that:

· a full gain or loss to be recognised by the investor when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not); and

· a partial gain or loss to be recognised by the parent when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.
	1 Jan 2016
	The assessment has indicated that there is limited impact, as the revisions to AASB 10 and AASB 128 are guidance in nature.

	AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012–2014 Cycle [AASB 1, AASB 2, AASB 3, AASB 5, AASB 7, AASB 11, AASB 110, AASB 119, AASB 121, AASB 133, AASB 134, AASB 137 & AASB 140]
	Amends the methods of disposal in AASB 5 Non- current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. Amends AASB 7 Financial Instruments by including further guidance on servicing contracts.
	1 Jan 2016
	The assessment has indicated that when an asset (or disposal group) is reclassified from ‘held to sale’ to ‘held for distribution’, or vice versa, the asset does not have to be reinstated in the financial statements. Entities will be required to disclose all types of continuing involvement the entity still has when transferring a financial asset to a third party under conditions which allow it to derecognise the asset.

	AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for- Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, AASB 124 & AASB 1049]
	The Amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to not-for-profit public sector entities. A guidance has been included to assist the application of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities.
	1 Jan 2016
	The amending standard will result in extended disclosures on the entity’s key management personnel (KMP), and the related party transactions.

	AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Recoverable Amount of Non-Cash-Generating Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities
	The standard amends AASB 136 Impairment of Assets to remove references to using depreciated replacement cost (DRC) as a measure of value in use for not-for-profit entities.
	1 Jan 2017
	The assessment has indicated that there is minimal impact. Given the specialised nature and restrictions of public sector assets, the existing use is presumed to be the highest and best use (HBU), hence current replacement cost under AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement is the same as the depreciated replacement cost concept under AASB 136.


(w) Accounting standards issued and adopted earlier

The Australian Accounting Standards Board issued an amending accounting standard AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities on 13 July 2015. Even though it was not mandatory for the reporting period 30 June 2015, the Department of Health and Human Services has elected to early adopt and apply AASB 2015-7 before its mandatory application date. The impact of the early adoption results in reduced disclosures relating to quantitative information of ‘significant unobservable inputs’ and the ‘sensitivity analysis’ in Note 11(d).

(x) Glossary of terms and style convention

Borrowings

Borrowings refers to interest-bearing liabilities mainly raised from public borrowings raised through the Treasury Corporation of Victoria, finance leases and other interest-bearing arrangements. Borrowings also include non-interest-bearing advances from government that are acquired for policy purposes.

Capital asset charge

A charge levied on the written-down value of controlled non-current physical assets in a department’s balance sheet which aims to: attribute to agency outputs the opportunity cost of capital used in service delivery; and provide incentives to departments to identify and dispose of underutilised or surplus assets in a timely manner.

Commitments

Commitments include those operating, capital and other outsourcing commitments arising from non-cancellable contractual or statutory sources.

Comprehensive result

The comprehensive result is the net result of all items of income and expense recognised for the period. It is the aggregate of operating result and other comprehensive income.

Controlled item

Controlled item generally refers to the capacity of a department to benefit from that item in the pursuit of the entity’s objectives and to deny or regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is used to calculate the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Employee benefits expenses

Employee benefits expense includes all costs related to employment including salaries and wages, leave entitlements, redundancy payments, defined benefits superannuation plans, and defined contribution superannuation plans.

Ex-gratia expenses

Ex-gratia expenses mean the voluntary payment of money or other non-monetary benefit (e.g. a write off) that is not made either to acquire goods, services or other benefits for the entity or to meet a legal liability, or to settle or resolve a possible legal liability or claim against the entity.

Financial instrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets or liabilities that are not contractual (such as statutory receivables or payables that arise as a result of statutory requirements imposed by governments) are not financial instruments.

Financial asset

A financial asset is any asset that is:

(b) cash;

(c) an equity instrument of another entity;

(d) a contractual or statutory right:

· to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

· to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity; or

(e) a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

· a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity’s own equity instruments; or

· a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

Financial liability

A financial liability is any liability that is:

(f) A contractual or statutory obligation:

(i) to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

(ii) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity; or

(g) a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

(iii) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s own equity instruments; or

(iv) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments. For this purpose the entity’s own equity instruments do not include instruments that are themselves contracts for the future receipt or delivery of the entity’s own equity instruments.

Financial statements

A complete set of financial statements comprise:

(h) a balance sheet as at the end of the year;

(i) a comprehensive operating statement for the year;

(j) a statement of changes in equity for the year;

(k) a statement of cash flows for the year;

(l) notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information;

(m) comparative information in respect of the preceding year as specified in paragraphs 38 of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements; and

(n) a balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding year when an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements in accordance with paragraph 41 of AASB 101.

Grants and other expense transfers

Transactions in which one unit provides goods, services, assets (or extinguishes a liability) or labour to another unit without receiving approximately equal value in return. Grants can either be operating or capital in nature. While grants to governments may result in the provision of some goods or services to the transferor, they do not give the transferor a claim to receive directly benefits of approximately equal value. For this reason, grants are referred to by the AASB as involuntary transfers and are termed non-reciprocal transfers. Receipt and sacrifice of approximately equal value may occur, but only by coincidence. For example, governments are not obliged to provide commensurate benefits, in the form of goods or services, to particular taxpayers in return for their taxes.

Grants can be paid as general purpose grants which refer to grants that are not subject to conditions regarding their use. Alternatively, they may be paid as specific purpose grants which are paid for a particular purpose and/or have conditions attached regarding their use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance.

Interest expense

Costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds includes interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, interest components of finance leases repayments, and the increase in financial liabilities and non-employee provisions due to the unwinding of discounts to reflect the passage of time.

Net result

Net result is a measure of financial performance of the operations for the period. It is the net result of items of income, gains and expenses (including losses) recognised for the period, excluding those that are classified as other economic flows – other comprehensive income.

Net result from transactions (net operating balance)

Net result from transactions or net operating balance is a key fiscal aggregate and is income from transactions minus expenses from transactions. It is a summary measure of the ongoing sustainability of operations. It excludes gains and losses resulting from changes in price levels and other changes in the volume of assets. It is the component of the change in net worth that is due to transactions and can be attributed directly to government policies.

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are all assets that are not ‘financial assets’. It includes inventories, land, buildings, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.

Other economic flows included in net result

Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. It includes gains and losses from disposals, revaluations and impairments of non-current physical and intangible assets; actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit superannuation plans; fair value changes of financial instruments. In simple terms, other economic flows are changes arising from market re-measurements.

Other economic flows – other comprehensive income

Other economic flows – other comprehensive income comprises items (including reclassification adjustments) that are not recognised in net result as required or permitted by other Australian Accounting Standards.

The components of other economic flows – other comprehensive income include:

(o) changes in physical asset revaluation reserve; and

(p) gains and losses on remeasuring available-for-sale financial assets.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses generally represent cost of goods sold and the day-to-day running costs, including maintenance costs, incurred in the normal operations of the department.

Payables

Includes short and long term accounts payable, grants, taxes and interest payable.

Receivables

Includes amounts owing from government through appropriation receivable, short and long term accounts receivable, accrued investment income, grants, taxes and interest receivable.

Transactions

Transactions are those economic flows that are considered to arise as a result of policy decisions, usually an interaction between two entities by mutual agreement. They also include flows within an entity such as depreciation where the owner is simultaneously acting as the owner of the depreciating asset and as the consumer of the service provided by the asset. Taxation is regarded as mutually agreed interactions between the government and taxpayers. Transactions can be in kind (for example, assets provided/given free of charge or for nominal consideration) or where the final consideration is cash. In simple terms, transactions arise from the policy decisions of the government.

Style conventions

Figures in the tables and in the text have been rounded. Discrepancies in tables between totals and sums of components reflect rounding. Percentage variations in all tables are based on the underlying unrounded amounts.

The notation used in the tables is as follows:

-
zero, or rounded to zero

(xxx.x)
negative numbers

20xx
year end

20xx–xx
year period

The financial statements and notes are presented based on the illustration for a government department in the 2015–16 Model Report for Victorian Government departments. The presentation of other disclosures is generally consistent with the other disclosures made in earlier publications of the department’s annual reports.

Note 2. Departmental (controlled) outputs

The Department of Health and Human Services develops and delivers policies, programs and services that support and enhance the wellbeing of all Victorians.

The department achieves these objectives through its service partners and the community by providing services and support to:

· help Victorians be as healthy as they can be by promoting good health, preventing disease and reducing health inequalities;
· provide safe integrated patient centred health services for the treatment of illness and disease;
· deliver best practice health care to all Victorians;
· provide immediate support to people in crisis, and helping individuals and families to get their lives back on track;
· improve the lives of individuals, young people, families and communities through building capabilities and resilience, and supporting participation in work, education and the community; and
· improve the quality of life for Victorians in need through the provision of support services to support people in need to enjoy a positive life.

A description of each departmental output group and their contribution to achieving the department’s objective is summarised below:

Output group 1: Acute Health Services

Acute Health Services outputs include a range of timely and high quality acute hospital inpatient, ambulatory, emergency, community-based and specialist services.

Output group 2: Ambulance Services

Ambulance Services outputs include emergency and non-emergency ambulance services.

Output group 3: Mental Health

Mental Health outputs include a range of inpatient, community-based residential and ambulatory services which treat and support people with a mental illness and their families and carers.

Output group 4: Ageing, Aged and Home Care

Ageing, Aged and Home Care outputs encompass leading and coordinating the whole of government policy on issues affecting our ageing community. It includes a range of in home, specialist geriatric, residential care and community based programs, such as Home and Community Care (HACC), that are targeted to older people, people with a disability, and their carers.

Output group 5: Primary, Community and Dental Health

Primary, Community and Dental Health outputs include a range of in home, community based, community, primary health and dental services designed to promote health and wellbeing and prevent the onset of more serious illnesses.

Output group 6: Small Rural Services

Small Rural Services includes a range of health and aged care services delivered in small rural towns. The funding and service delivery approach focuses on achieving a sustainable, flexible service mix that is responsive to local needs. Service providers include small rural hospitals, community health services, bush nursing centres, multi-purpose services and public sector residential aged care services.

Output group 7: Public Health

Public Health outputs encompass services and support, including screening for health conditions and safety inspections that promote and protect the health and wellbeing of all Victorians.

Output group 8: Drug Services

Drug Services outputs include programs and services aimed at promoting and protecting health by reducing death, disease and social harm caused by the use and misuse of licit and illicit drugs.

Output group 9: Disability Services

Disability Services outputs include provision of continuing care and support services for people with disabilities, their carers and their families, and aims to make a positive difference for Victorians experiencing disadvantage.

Output group 10: Child Protection and Family Services

Child Protection and Family Services outputs fund statutory child protection services, family support and parenting services, family violence and sexual assault services, adoption and placement care services and specialist support services to ensure the safety and wellbeing of adolescents and children at risk of harm, abuse and neglect.

Output group 11: Youth Services and Youth Justice

Youth Services and Youth Justice outputs fund a range of services including the provision of advice to courts, community-based and custodial supervision and youth services.

Output group 12: Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries

Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries outputs include the development and coordination of the delivery of concessions and relief grants to eligible consumers and concession card holders.

Output group 13: Empowering Individuals and Communities

Empowering Individuals and Communities outputs fund programs that support community participation including Neighbourhood Houses, Men’s Sheds, community support projects and community sport and recreation and programs for youth and people with a disability

Output group 14: Housing Assistance

Housing Assistance outputs include the provision of homelessness services, crisis and transitional accommodation and long-term adequate, affordable and accessible housing assistance, coordinated with support services where required, home renovation assistance and the management of the home loan portfolio.
Output group 15: Shared Services
Shared services reflect the range of corporate services that the department provides to the Department of Education and Training.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 2. Departmental (controlled) outputs (continued)
Schedule A – Controlled income and expenses for the year ended 30 June 2016

	Output group
	1

$M
	2

$M
	3

$M
	4

$M
	5

$M
	6

$M
	7

$M
	8

$M
	9

$M
	10

$M
	11

$M
	12

$M
	13

$M
	14

$M
	15

$M
	Total (i)
$M

	Income from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Output appropriations
	5,378.9
	503.1
	760.3
	1,002.9
	385.2
	320.1
	247.1
	91.0
	1,694.6
	1,000.3
	152.5
	704.9
	200.6
	460.4
	–
	12,901.7

	Special appropriations
	1,068.5
	59.7
	43.2
	25.4
	49.6
	9.1
	13.8
	7.9
	63.9
	–
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	1,341.2

	Interest income
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	9.4
	–
	9.4

	Rental income
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	476.6
	–
	476.6

	Grants and other income transfers
	252.3
	–
	286.2
	0.6
	9.7
	87.3
	63.3
	86.7
	0.5
	3.6
	–
	–
	30.4
	13.4
	–
	834.2

	Other income
	20.7
	0.3
	1.3
	0.6
	0.5
	0.8
	1.7
	–
	6.8
	2.4
	1.3
	–
	2.0
	326.5
	2.4
	367.3

	Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	8.6
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	3.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	2.0
	–
	13.6

	Total income from transactions
	6,729.0
	563.1
	1,090.9
	1,029.5
	445.0
	417.3
	325.8
	185.6
	1,768.8
	1,006.3
	153.8
	704.9
	233.2
	1,288.3
	2.4
	15,943.9

	Expenses from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Employee expenses
	83.1
	1.3
	23.7
	23.9
	11.5
	3.2
	39.2
	9.2
	535.8
	266.3
	73.1
	6.4
	15.7
	97.5
	1.3
	1,191.2

	Depreciation and amortisation
	15.6
	–
	4.8
	2.4
	3.7
	(0.1)
	1.2
	0.1
	22.0
	11.2
	6.1
	0.1
	0.7
	212.6
	0.2
	280.6

	Interest expense
	–
	0.1
	0.3
	0.3
	–
	0.1
	0.4
	–
	(0.5)
	(0.4)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.3

	Rates to local authorities
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	116.3
	–
	116.3

	Maintenance
	0.5
	–
	0.1
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	13.4
	4.4
	4.9
	–
	–
	176.8
	–
	200.1

	Rental property lease expenses
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	13.2
	–
	13.2

	Tenant utilities and other expenses
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	78.6
	–
	78.6

	Home finance operating costs
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	2.0
	–
	2.0

	Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	2.5
	–
	–
	–
	6.4
	–
	–
	–
	4.9
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	13.9

	Other operating expenses
	112.8
	0.9
	9.4
	16.4
	5.4
	2.6
	60.4
	6.3
	111.2
	83.7
	28.8
	4.3
	6.9
	40.1
	0.9
	490.2

	Grants and other expense transfers
	5,634.2
	520.6
	953.9
	868.7
	361.1
	332.1
	217.0
	162.7
	1,036.5
	625.4
	29.9
	694.1
	203.1
	279.4
	–
	11,918.6

	Capital asset charge
	747.7
	17.7
	65.5
	50.8
	26.5
	35.8
	2.5
	2.3
	38.0
	13.1
	10.3
	–
	6.6
	–
	–
	1,016.8

	Total expenses from transactions
	6,596.4
	540.6
	1,057.6
	962.6
	414.5
	373.6
	320.7
	180.6
	1,761.5
	1,003.7
	153.0
	704.8
	233.0
	1,016.5
	2.4
	15,321.8

	Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
	132.5
	22.4
	33.3
	66.9
	30.5
	43.7
	5.1
	5.0
	7.3
	2.6
	0.8
	0.1
	0.2
	271.8
	(0.0)
	622.1

	Other economic flows included in net result
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
	(0.5)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	(0.8)
	1.0
	0.2
	–
	–
	0.9
	–
	0.9

	Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
	0.4
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.2
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.6

	Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	(3.7)
	(0.3)
	(0.4)
	(0.2)
	(0.1)
	0.1
	(0.4)
	(0.1)
	(5.7)
	(3.4)
	(0.9)
	(0.1)
	(0.2)
	(6.7)
	–
	(22.1)

	Total other economic flows included in net result
	(3.8)
	(0.3)
	(0.4)
	(0.2)
	(0.1)
	0.1
	(0.3)
	(0.1)
	(6.3)
	(2.4)
	(0.7)
	(0.1)
	(0.2)
	(5.8)
	–
	(20.6)

	Net result for the year
	128.7
	22.1
	32.9
	66.7
	30.4
	43.8
	4.8
	4.9
	1.1
	0.2
	0.0
	0.1
	(0.0)
	266.0
	(0.0)
	601.5


Note:

(i) Total amount may not agree with Comprehensive Operating Statement due to eliminations.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 2. Departmental (controlled) outputs (continued)

Schedule A – Controlled income and expenses for the year ended 30 June 2015

	Output group
	1

$M
	2

$M
	3

$M
	4

$M
	5

$M
	6

$M
	7

$M
	8

$M
	9

$M
	10

$M
	11

$M
	12

$M
	13

$M
	14

$M
	15

$M
	Total (i)
$M

	Income from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Output appropriations
	5,075.3
	428.9
	711.1
	962.7
	382.0
	301.0
	268.5
	76.6
	768.0
	447.4
	65.5
	244.1
	51.1
	185.9
	–
	9,968.2

	Special appropriations
	1,029.7
	52.0
	47.0
	26.2
	49.3
	10.0
	17.4
	8.9
	32.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1,272.5

	Interest income
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	5.1
	–
	5.1

	Rental income and income from services
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	235.0
	–
	235.0

	Grants and other income transfers
	160.2
	–
	265.1
	0.4
	9.9
	87.5
	38.0
	78.8
	1.1
	0.3
	–
	0.4
	8.1
	2.9
	–
	652.8

	Other income
	62.8
	0.3
	1.3
	0.6
	0.5
	0.8
	1.7
	–
	4.6
	0.9
	0.5
	–
	0.5
	5.8
	0.9
	81.2

	Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.2
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.1
	–
	1.3

	Total income from transactions
	6,328.1
	481.2
	1,024.5
	989.9
	441.7
	399.3
	325.6
	164.4
	805.9
	448.5
	66.0
	244.5
	59.7
	435.7
	0.9
	12,216.1

	Expenses from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Employee expenses
	79.4
	2.0
	22.3
	21.4
	10.6
	3.2
	36.4
	8.8
	264.4
	119.8
	34.3
	3.1
	7.3
	48.9
	0.4
	662.3

	Depreciation and amortisation
	15.5
	–
	3.3
	2.3
	3.9
	–
	1.1
	0.1
	10.1
	5.4
	1.6
	0.1
	0.3
	106.5
	–
	150.2

	Interest expense
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.3
	0.2
	–
	–
	–
	10.2
	–
	10.7

	Rates to local authorities
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	56.4
	–
	56.4

	Maintenance
	0.1
	–
	0.1
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	7.2
	2.1
	2.3
	–
	–
	105.1
	–
	117.1

	Rental property lease expenses
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	5.4
	–
	5.5

	Tenant utilities and other expenses
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	39.2
	–
	39.2

	Home finance operating costs
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.9
	–
	0.9

	Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	0.1
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.0
	–
	–
	–
	(0.1)
	–
	–
	1.0

	Other operating expenses
	119.5
	1.2
	12.8
	17.2
	5.1
	2.3
	86.6
	7.3
	59.8
	41.8
	11.8
	2.6
	2.9
	25.3
	0.5
	396.5

	Grants and other transfers
	5,319.7
	437.1
	907.0
	835.9
	375.9
	322.4
	202.6
	145.8
	490.4
	284.3
	14.4
	307.7
	54.5
	134.0
	–
	9,831.7

	Capital asset charge
	680.4
	17.7
	63.1
	50.8
	26.4
	35.8
	2.5
	2.3
	18.6
	6.3
	5.2
	–
	0.8
	–
	–
	909.6

	Total expenses from transactions
	6,214.7
	458.0
	1,008.6
	927.7
	421.9
	363.7
	329.2
	164.3
	851.8
	459.9
	69.6
	313.5
	65.7
	531.9
	0.9
	12,181.1

	Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
	113.4
	23.2
	15.9
	62.4
	19.8
	35.6
	(3.6)
	0.1
	(44.1)
	(11.4)
	(3.6)
	(69.0)
	(6.0)
	(96.2)
	–
	35.0

	Other economic flows included in net result
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(0.3)
	–
	–
	0.5
	0.4
	0.1
	–
	–
	(7.1)
	–
	(6.4)

	Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
	1.3
	–
	0.2
	0.1
	0.1
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.8

	Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	(19.6)
	(1.2)
	(2.2)
	(0.6)
	(0.7)
	(0.7)
	(0.3)
	(0.1)
	1.2
	0.4
	0.2
	–
	–
	(3.7)
	–
	(27.4)

	Total other economic flows included in net result
	(18.3)
	(1.2)
	(2.0)
	(0.5)
	(0.6)
	(0.9)
	(0.3)
	(0.1)
	1.8
	0.8
	0.3
	–
	–
	(10.8)
	–
	(32.0)

	Net result for the year
	95.1
	22.0
	13.9
	61.7
	19.2
	34.7
	(3.9)
	–
	(44.1)
	(10.6)
	(3.2)
	(69.0)
	(6.0)
	(107.0)
	–
	3.0


Note:

(i) Total amount may not agree with Comprehensive Operating Statement due to eliminations.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 3. Summary of compliance with annual parliamentary and special appropriations

(a) Summary of compliance with annual parliamentary appropriations

The following tables disclose the details of the various annual parliamentary appropriations received by the department for the year. In accordance with accrual output-based management procedures ‘provision of outputs’ and ‘additions to net assets’ are disclosed as ‘controlled’ activities of the department. Administered transactions are those that are undertaken on behalf of the State over which the department has no control or discretion.

	2016
	Appropriation Act
	Financial Management Act 1994
	Total parlia-mentary authority

$M
	Approp-riation applied

$M
	Variance

$M
	

	
	Annual approp-riation

$M
	Advance 
from 
Treasurer

$M
	Section 3(2)

$M
	Section 29 (iii)
$M
	Section 30 (iv)
$M
	Section 32

$M
	Section 35 advances

$M
	
	
	
	

	Controlled
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provision of outputs
	11,865.5
	65.8
	–
	948.5
	105.3
	158.9
	–
	13,144.0
	12,901.7
	242.3
	(i)

	Additions to net assets
	147.1
	–
	–
	88.5
	(105.3)
	3.0
	–
	133.4
	89.8
	43.6
	(ii)

	Total
	12,012.6
	65.8
	–
	1,037.1
	–
	161.9
	–
	13,277.4
	12,991.5
	285.9
	


Notes:

(i) The provision of outputs variance of $242.3M comprises $198.5M relating to funding for services and projects that will be sought in 2016–17, and $43.8M relating to output appropriation authority not applied in 2015–16.

(ii) The additions to net assets variance of $43.6M comprises $17.8M relating to funding for capital projects that will be delivered in 2016–17 and outyears and $25.7M relating to appropriation authority not applied in 2016–17.

(iii) Refer to Note 27 for further detail.

(iv) Transfer from the additions to net assets authority to appropriation for provision of outputs mainly relates to capital projects that are delivered via non portfolio agencies and result in output appropriation costs to the Department of Health and Human Services.

	2015
	Appropriation Act
	Financial Management Act 1994
	Total parlia-mentary authority

$M
	Approp-riation applied

$M
	Variance

$M
	

	
	Annual approp-riation

$M
	
	Advance from Treasurer

$M
	Section 3(2)

$M
	Section 29 (iv)
$M
	Section 30 (v)
$M
	Section 32

$M
	Section 35 advances

$M
	
	
	
	

	Controlled
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provision of outputs
	9,292.5
	(i)
	–
	–
	875.8
	18.4
	101.0
	–
	10,287.7
	9,968.2
	319.5
	(ii)

	Additions to net assets
	147.5
	(i)
	–
	–
	140.2
	(18.4)
	128.2
	–
	397.5
	278.7
	118.8
	(iii)

	Total
	9,440.0
	
	–
	–
	1,016.0
	–
	229.2
	–
	10,685.2
	10,246.9
	438.3
	


Notes:

(i) Significant annual appropriation was transferred to the new Department of Health and Human Services as a result of machinery of government change effective 1 January 2015.

(ii) The Provision of outputs variance comprises $159M relating to funding for services and projects that will be sought in 2015–16, and $160.5M relating to output appropriation authority not applied in 2014–15.

(iii) The additions to net assets variance of $118.9M comprises $73.8M relating to funding for capital projects that will be delivered in 2015–16 and onwards and $45.1M appropriation authority not applied in 2014–15.

(iv) Refer to Note 27 for further detail.

(v) Transfer from the additions to net assets authority to appropriation for provision of outputs mainly relates to capital projects that are delivered via non-portfolio agencies and result in output appropriation costs to the Department of Health and Human Services.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 3. Summary of compliance with annual parliamentary and special appropriations (continued)

(b) Summary of compliance with special appropriations

	Authority
	Purpose
	Appropriation applied

	
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Section 4.4.11 and 4.6.8 of the Gambling Regulation Act No. 114 of 2003
	Contribution to the Hospitals and Charities fund
	54.8
	59.0

	Section 5.4.6 of Gambling Regulation Act No.114 of 2003
	Contribution to the Hospitals and Charities fund

and Mental Hospitals Fund
	422.6
	369.4

	Section 114 of the Casino Control Act No.47 1991
	Contribution to the Hospitals and Charities fund
	18.3
	18.7

	Section 3.6.11 of Gambling Regulation Act No. 114 of 2003
	Contribution to the Hospitals and Charities fund
	840.0
	816.8

	Section 6A.4.4(1) of Gambling Regulation Act No 114 of 2003
	Contribution to the Hospitals and Charities fund
	4.7
	4.1

	Section 10 of the Financial Management Act 1994
	Access to various Commonwealth grants – provision of outputs
	0.8
	4.5

	Total special appropriations
	1,341.2
	1,272.5

	Section 10 of the Financial Management Act 1994
	Access to various Commonwealth grants – ATNAB
	17.8
	17.3

	Total
	1,359.0
	1,289.8


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 4. Income from transactions

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	(a) Interest income
	
	

	Interest from financial assets:
	
	

	– Interest on short term deposits
	8.4
	4.7

	– Interest from loans
	1.0
	0.4

	Total interest income
	9.4
	5.1

	(b) Rental income and income from services
	
	

	Rental income raised
	938.8
	458.9

	Rents not received through vacancy
	(8.4)
	(4.0)

	Rental rebates
	(452.1)
	(219.3)

	Rental subsidies – welfare organisations
	(9.2)
	(4.3)

	Shared Home Ownership Scheme – rent raised
	2.2
	1.1

	Total net rent receivable
	471.2
	232.4

	Total user charges – rental properties
	5.0
	2.4

	Rendering of services
	0.4
	0.2

	Total rental income and income from services
	476.6
	235.0

	(c) Grants and other income transfers
	
	

	Department of Treasury and Finance
	65.9
	43.8

	Department of Education and Training
	0.3
	–

	Department of Economic Development Jobs Transport and Resources
	27.3
	2.0

	Department of Justice and Regulation
	19.1
	3.4

	Department of Premier and Cabinet
	1.8
	0.2

	Department of Health and Human Services
	–
	3.2

	Other state departments
	12.8
	6.1

	Commonwealth Government
	698.7
	586.9

	Victoria Police
	–
	0.1

	Other public bodies
	6.1
	7.1

	Total grants and other income transfers
	832.0
	652.8

	(d) Other income
	
	

	State trust accounts
	31.4
	23.6

	Interstate patients
	9.3
	51.6

	Other (i)
	326.5
	6.0

	Total other income
	367.2
	81.2

	(e) Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	
	

	Land received at fair value
	1.5
	0.3

	Buildings received at fair value
	4.5
	–

	Resources received free of charge
	5.5
	0.2

	Total fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	11.6
	0.5


Note:

(i) Other income of $314.8M relates to the Housing loan forgiveness, see Note 13(iii).

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 5. Expenses from transactions

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	(a) Employee expenses
	
	

	Post employment benefits
	
	

	– Defined contribution supperannuation expense
	75.3
	41.7

	– Defined benefit superannuation expense
	13.3
	10.2

	
	88.7
	51.9

	Termination benefits
	2.3
	0.5

	Salaries and wages
	1,100.3
	609.9

	Total employee expenses
	1,191.2
	662.3

	(b) Depreciation and amortisation
	
	

	Buildings
	
	

	– Health and Welfare
	36.2
	27.9

	– Public Administration
	0.6
	0.3

	– Youth Justice
	3.4
	0.5

	– Community Housing
	197.3
	97.6

	Plant, equipment and vehicles
	
	

	– Health and Welfare
	5.8
	2.7

	– Community Housing
	0.2
	0.1

	Intangible assets
	
	

	– Health and Welfare
	6.8
	4.7

	– Community Housing
	17.3
	8.8

	Motor vehicles under finance lease
	
	

	– Health and Welfare
	15.4
	7.6

	– Community Housing
	–
	–

	Aggregate depreciation and amortisation allocated
	282.8
	150.2

	Less depreciation and amortisation capitalised to carrying amount of other assets during the year
	(2.1)
	–

	Total depreciation and amortisation
	280.7
	150.2

	(c) Interest expense
	
	

	Finance lease costs
	0.7
	0.5

	Interest on borrowings
	(0.5)
	–

	DTF debt liability interest expense
	–
	10.2

	Total interest expense
	0.3
	10.7

	(d) Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	
	

	Land at fair value
	5.0
	–

	Buildings at fair value
	1.3
	–

	Resources given free of charge
	5.5
	0.2

	Total fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	11.9
	0.2

	(e) Other operating expenses
	
	

	Accommodation and property services
	77.9
	50.3

	Administrative costs
	188.9
	164.1

	Information, communications and technology costs
	118.0
	91.3

	Medicines and drugs/pharmacy supplies
	40.0
	58.7

	Direct care operating costs
	62.5
	30.6

	Ex-gratia expense
	2.8
	1.5

	Total other operating expenses
	490.2
	396.5


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 5. Expenses from transactions (continued)
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	(f) Grants and other expense transfers
	
	

	State contributions to the Administrator of the Victoria Health Funding Pool
	4,090.9
	3,941.5

	Public hospitals
	
	

	Monash Health
	351.3
	210.0

	Melbourne Health
	214.6
	171.0

	Eastern Health
	172.3
	175.6

	Dental Health Services Victoria
	165.2
	179.4

	Alfred Health
	149.3
	144.9

	Albury Wodonga Health
	124.2
	117.0

	Austin Health
	112.6
	95.8

	Barwon Health
	111.3
	130.3

	Ballarat Health Services
	110.5
	86.8

	Peninsula Health
	97.3
	108.5

	Bendigo Health Care Group
	85.2
	80.6

	Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre
	75.9
	154.6

	Western Health
	66.6
	66.3

	Latrobe Regional Hospital
	58.4
	41.9

	The Royal Children’s Hospital
	57.9
	55.3

	Northern Health
	55.1
	40.3

	The Royal Women’s Hospital
	46.7
	43.8

	Goulburn Valley Health
	39.3
	44.6

	South West Healthcare
	38.2
	27.9

	The Royal Victorian Eye and Ear Hospital
	20.5
	30.8

	West Wimmera Health Service
	20.0
	17.9

	Swan Hill District Health
	18.9
	12.2

	East Wimmera Health Service
	15.6
	14.9

	Djerriwarrh Health Services
	14.7
	11.1

	Western District Health Service
	14.3
	13.1

	Alpine Health
	13.8
	13.9

	Seymour Health
	13.6
	15.3

	Hepburn Health Service
	13.0
	12.6

	Bass Coast Health
	12.4
	10.7

	Kilmore and District Hospital
	12.2
	15.4

	Wimmera Health Care Group
	11.6
	10.4

	Northeast Health Wangaratta
	11.5
	11.8

	Yarrawonga Health
	11.3
	10.4

	Boort District Health
	11.1
	4.5

	West Gippsland Healthcare Group
	10.8
	9.0

	Rural Northwest Health
	10.4
	10.8

	Other public hospitals with payments totalling less than $10M
	285.8
	264.0

	
	6,744.3
	6,405.1

	Denominational hospitals
	
	

	St Vincent’s Hospital Melbourne Limited
	104.2
	102.0

	Mercy Public Hospitals Incorporated
	35.2
	31.0

	Other denominational hospitals with payments totalling less than $10M
	6.4
	7.2

	
	145.7
	140.2

	Ambulance services
	
	

	Ambulance Victoria
	492.8
	469.0

	
	492.8
	469.0
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Note 5. Expenses from transactions (continued)
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	(f) Grants and other expense transfers (continued)
	
	

	Other state government agencies
	
	

	Victorian Institute of Forensic Mental Health
	45.9
	44.4

	Victorian Health Promotion Foundation
	37.7
	37.3

	Health Purchasing Victoria
	13.0
	13.0

	Other state government agencies with payments totalling less than $10M
	20.8
	20.2

	
	117.4
	114.9

	Local councils
	
	

	City of Greater Bendigo
	21.1
	7.5

	City of Greater Geelong
	16.4
	13.9

	City of Kingston
	15.1
	13.8

	Casey City Council
	12.9
	11.5

	City of Greater Dandenong
	11.0
	10.5

	Other local councils with payments totalling less than $10M
	273.3
	235.6

	
	349.8
	292.8

	Commonwealth Government
	
	

	National Disability Insurance Agency
	73.8
	17.2

	
	73.8
	17.2

	Non-government agencies and individuals
	
	

	Royal District Nursing Service
	98.2
	97.1

	National Blood Authority
	94.9
	89.1

	Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (Victoria)
	83.6
	51.1

	Anglicare Victoria
	78.3
	35.4

	Yooralla
	77.3
	36.6

	Salvation Army Property Trust
	73.9
	41.5

	Berry Street Victoria Incorporated
	72.0
	33.9

	Moira Inc
	65.8
	30.7

	Scope Vic Ltd
	64.6
	30.0

	MacKillop Family Services Limited
	46.2
	21.0

	Wesley Mission Victoria
	42.7
	23.2

	Breastscreen Victoria Inc
	42.4
	41.6

	CoHealth Ltd
	41.7
	45.0

	Eastern Access Community Health Inc
	37.8
	29.1

	Melbourne City Mission
	35.8
	19.2

	Geelong Football Club
	35.5
	1.5

	Launch Housing
	30.9
	16.0

	Australian Community Support Organisation
	28.5
	20.2

	Latrobe Community Health Service
	26.6
	22.9

	Villa Maria Society
	24.6
	13.9

	YSAS Pty Ltd
	23.3
	16.6

	Isis Primary Care Ltd
	22.9
	20.5

	Neami Limited
	22.4
	20.5

	Victorian Aboriginal Child Care Agency
	21.1
	9.9

	MIND Australia
	20.7
	18.3

	Oncall Personnel
	20.2
	9.8

	Inner South Community Health Service
	19.9
	18.6

	Cricket Victoria
	19.1
	0.0

	St John of God Health Care
	18.8
	9.7

	The University of Melbourne
	18.8
	16.9

	Vision Australia
	18.5
	9.7
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Note 5. Expenses from transactions (continued)
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	(f) Grants and other expense transfers (continued)
	
	

	EW Tipping Foundation Inc
	18.2
	8.4

	Victorian Person Centred Services
	17.2
	9.5

	Merri Community Health Services Limited
	16.6
	15.1

	Victorian Cytology Service Inc
	15.3
	16.7

	Care Connect Limited
	14.7
	11.2

	Women’s Health Victoria Inc
	14.1
	9.8

	Wayss Ltd
	13.9
	6.4

	The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research
	13.6
	0.8

	Mecwacare
	13.4
	11.7

	OzChild (Children Australia Inc)
	13.4
	7.2

	Kindilan Society
	13.0
	6.1

	Child and Family Services Ballarat
	12.8
	5.7

	Cancer Council Victoria
	12.6
	14.4

	Melba Support Services
	11.9
	4.8

	Odyssey House
	11.8
	8.9

	Karingal
	11.7
	6.1

	Wallara Australia
	11.5
	5.5

	Barwon Child Youth and Family
	11.5
	5.4

	Loddon Mallee Housing Services
	11.2
	5.6

	Plenty Valley Community Health
	11.2
	8.4

	St Vincent de Paul Society Victoria
	11.2
	6.4

	Gippsland Lakes Community Health
	11.1
	8.2

	Mental Illness Fellowship Victoria
	11.0
	10.0

	Annecto
	10.9
	5.7

	Independence Australia
	10.9
	3.9

	Ovens and King Community Health Service
	10.4
	0.9

	Central Bayside Community Health Service
	10.4
	8.4

	Maccallum Disability Services
	10.3
	4.8

	Mildura Aboriginal Corporation
	10.2
	5.8

	Client/Assistance Payments to individuals
	667.5
	296.5

	Other non-government agencies with payments totalling less than $10M
	1,632.4
	1,024.7

	
	3,992.8
	2,392.5

	Total grants and other expense transfers
	11,916.6
	9,831.7
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Note 6. Other economic flows included in net result

	
	2016
$M
	2015

$M

	(a) Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
	
	

	Revenue from disposal of non-financial physical assets
	
	

	Land
	58.4
	32.6

	Buildings
	83.0
	9.6

	Shared home ownership scheme
	1.9
	1.0

	Miscellaneous assets
	14.6
	6.4

	Total revenue from disposal of non-financial physical assets
	157.8
	49.6

	Costs on disposal of non-financial physical assets
	
	

	Land
	57.0
	26.5

	Buildings
	81.3
	22.8

	Shared home ownership scheme
	1.8
	0.9

	Community services properties
	1.3
	0.4

	Miscellaneous assets
	15.5
	5.6

	Total costs on disposal of non-financial physical assets
	156.9
	56.2

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
	0.9
	(6.4)

	(b) Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory receivables/payables
	0.6
	1.8

	Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
	0.6
	1.8

	(c) Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service leave liability
	(18.2)
	(27.4)

	Revaluation and adjustments of insurance claims
	3.2
	3.9

	Bad debt expenses
	(7.1)
	(3.9)

	Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	(22.1)
	(27.4)


Note 7. Cash and deposits

	
	2016
$M
	2015

$M

	Short term deposits (i)
	62.6
	193.2

	Cash at bank
	27.3
	14.6

	Funds held in trust
	141.0
	161.5

	Cash advances
	(0.1)
	0.1

	Total cash and deposits
	230.8
	369.4


Note:

(i) Cash and short-term deposits are committed to a number of significant projects and are expected to be expensed in 2016–17 (as disclosed in Note 22).
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Note 8. Receivables

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Current receivables
	
	

	Contractual
	
	

	Tenants in arrears
	12.1
	13.5

	Other receivables
	62.8
	71.5

	Less provision for doubtful contractual receivables
	(5.3)
	(6.2)

	
	69.7
	78.8

	Statutory
	
	

	Amounts owing from Victorian Government (i)
	949.9
	591.5

	GST input tax credit recoverable
	36.8
	42.1

	
	986.8
	633.6

	Total current receivables
	1,056.4
	712.4

	Non-current receivables
	
	

	Contractual
	
	

	Tenants in arrears
	0.6
	1.1

	Less provision for doubtful contractual receivables
	(0.3)
	(0.5)

	
	0.3
	0.6

	Statutory
	
	

	Amounts owing from Victorian Government (i)
	1,614.3
	1,367.4

	Total non-current receivables
	1,614.6
	1,368.0

	Total receivables
	2,671.0
	2,080.4


Note:

(i) The amounts recognised from the Victorian Government represent funding for all commitments incurred through the appropriations and are drawn from the Consolidated Fund as the commitments fall due.
(a) Movement in the provision for doubtful contractual receivables

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Balance at beginning of the year
	(6.7)
	(0.1)

	(Increase)/decrease in allowance recognised in net result
	1.1
	(6.6)

	Balance at the end of the year
	(5.6)
	(6.7)


(b) Ageing analysis of contractual receivables

Refer to Note 17 for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables.

(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual receivables

Refer to Note 17 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables.
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Note 9. Loans

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Current loans
	
	

	Contractual
	
	

	Fixed interest home loans
	1.5
	2.1

	Indexed interest home loans
	9.6
	9.8

	Variable interest home loans
	0.2
	0.2

	Other loans
	7.1
	3.6

	Total current loans
	18.4
	15.7

	Non-current loans
	
	

	Contractual
	
	

	Fixed interest home loans
	1.5
	1.5

	Indexed interest home loans
	9.8
	11.8

	Community housing loans
	20.2
	20.2

	Other loans
	33.3
	31.3

	Total non-current loans
	64.9
	64.8

	Less provision for return of equity
	(0.1)
	(0.1)

	Less provision for doubtful contractual loans
	
	

	Fixed interest home loans
	(0.1)
	(0.1)

	Indexed interest home loans
	(0.2)
	(0.3)

	Total loans
	82.9
	80.0


(a) Movement in the provision for doubtful contractual loans

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Balance at the beginning of the year
	(0.4)
	–

	(Increase)/decrease in allowance recognised in net result
	–
	(0.4)

	Balance at the end of the year
	(0.3)
	(0.4)


(b) Ageing analysis of contractual loans

Refer to Note 17 for the ageing analysis of contractual loans.

(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual loans

Refer to Note 17 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual loans.

(d) Defaults and breaches

During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the loans.

(e) Securities on loan portfolio

The majority of loans are secured by a registered mortgage. However there are a small number of loans that are terms contracts of sale. The title remains in the name of the vendor, Director of Housing as successor in title to the Housing Commission, until the amount owing under the contract of sale is paid in full. Some mortgage relief and home renovation loans are subject to an unregistered mortgage with a caveat on the title noting the Director of Housing as having an interest in the property. The current Home Renovation Service loan program does not require security for loans of $10,000 or less.
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Note 10. Non-financial physical assets classified as held for sale

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Non-financial physical assets classified as held for sale
	
	

	Buildings held for sale
	2.0
	–

	Land held for sale
	23.7
	–

	Plant, equipment and vehicles
	0.6
	1.0

	Total non-financial physical assets classified as held for sale
	26.3
	1.0

	Movements in carrying amounts
	
	

	Balance at beginning of the year
	1.0
	0.1

	Transfers from property, plant and equipment
	27.7
	1.0

	Disposals
	(2.3)
	(0.1)

	Balance at end of the year
	26.3
	1.0


(a) Fair Value measurement of non-financial physical assets held for sale

	
	Carrying amount

$M
	Fair value measurement at end 
of reporting period using:

	
	
	Level 1 (i)
$M
	Level 2 (i)
$M
	Level 3 (i)
$M

	2016
	
	
	
	

	Land held for sale
	
	
	
	

	Specialised land
	23.7
	–
	0.2
	23.5

	Total land at fair value held for sale
	23.7
	–
	0.2
	23.5

	Buildings held for sale
	
	
	
	

	Specialised building
	2.0
	–
	2.0
	–

	Total buildings held for sale
	2.0
	–
	2.0
	–

	Motor vehicles held for sale
	
	
	
	

	Motor vehicles under finance lease
	0.6
	–
	–
	0.6

	Total motor vehicles held for sale
	0.6
	–
	–
	0.6

	2015
	
	
	
	

	Motor vehicles held for sale
	
	
	
	

	Motor vehicles under finance lease
	1.0
	–
	–
	1.0

	Total motor vehicles held for sale
	1.0
	–
	–
	1.0


Note:

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1(b).

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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Note 11. Property, plant and equipment – carrying amounts – classification by purpose group

	Sub-classification by nature (i)
	Health and Welfare
	Youth Justice
	Community Housing
	Public Administration
	Total

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M
	2016

$M
	2015

$M
	2016

$M
	2015

$M
	2016

$M
	2015

$M
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Land at fair value
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rental property
	–
	–
	–
	–
	14,298.9
	12,007.2
	–
	–
	14,298.9
	12,007.2

	Community services
	775.5
	673.4
	86.1
	86.0
	–
	–
	6.6
	6.5
	868.2
	765.9

	Less allowance for Shared Home Ownership Scheme equity conversion
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(3.9)
	(3.8)
	–
	–
	(3.9)
	(3.8)

	Total land at fair value
	775.5
	673.4
	86.1
	86.0
	14,295.0
	12,003.4
	6.6
	6.5
	15,163.2
	12,769.3

	Buildings at fair value
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rental property
	–
	–
	–
	–
	8,855.5
	8,739.2
	–
	–
	8,855.5
	8,739.2

	Other property – regional offices
	–
	–
	–
	–
	3.5
	3.5
	–
	–
	3.5
	3.5

	Community services
	756.0
	721.9
	126.6
	123.6
	–
	–
	14.7
	14.6
	897.3
	860.1

	Less accumulated depreciation
	(88.7)
	(53.0)
	(3.5)
	(0.1)
	(292.3)
	(96.3)
	(0.8)
	(0.3)
	(385.3)
	(149.7)

	Less allowance for Shared Home Ownership Scheme equity conversion
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(1.9)
	(1.9)
	–
	–
	(1.9)
	(1.9)

	Total buildings at fair value
	667.3
	668.9
	123.2
	123.5
	8,564.7
	8,644.5
	13.9
	14.3
	9,369.0
	9,451.2

	Plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Plant, equipment and vehicles
	42.7
	31.0
	1.0
	0.7
	2.0
	0.5
	–
	–
	45.7
	32.2

	Less accumulated depreciation
	(29.4)
	(22.2)
	(0.2)
	–
	(0.3)
	(0.1)
	–
	–
	(29.8)
	(22.3)

	
	13.3
	8.8
	0.8
	0.7
	1.8
	0.4
	–
	–
	15.8
	9.9

	Motor vehicles under finance lease
	46.3
	48.9
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	46.3
	48.9

	Less accumulated depreciation
	1.0
	(2.1)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.0
	(2.1)

	
	47.4
	46.8
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	47.4
	46.8

	Total plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value
	60.6
	55.6
	0.8
	0.7
	1.8
	0.4
	–
	–
	63.2
	56.7

	Assets under construction at cost
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rental property
	–
	–
	–
	–
	70.2
	54.5
	–
	–
	70.2
	54.5

	Other property
	20.0
	15.7
	3.6
	–
	0.4
	–
	–
	0.1
	24.0
	15.8

	Total assets under construction at cost
	20.0
	15.7
	3.6
	–
	70.6
	54.5
	–
	0.1
	94.2
	70.3

	Net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
	1,523.4
	1,413.6
	213.7
	210.2
	22,932.0
	20,702.8
	20.5
	20.9
	24,689.6
	22,347.5


Note:

(i) Property, plant and equipment are classified primarily by the purpose for which the assets are used, according to one of six purpose groups based upon Government Purpose Classifications. All assets within a purpose group are further sub-categorised according to the assets’ nature (for example, buildings, plant and equipment, etc), with each sub-category being classified as a separate class of asset for financial reporting purposes.
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Note 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a) Reconciliations of the movement in carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the financial year are set out below.

Movements in carrying amounts – Health and Welfare purpose group

	
	Land at fair value

$M
	Buildings at fair value

$M
	Plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value

$M
	Assets under construction at cost

$M
	Total

$M

	Balance at 1 July 2014
	312.6
	327.3
	7.6
	8.9
	656.4

	Machinery of Government transfer in (i)
	356.6
	339.4
	49.2
	13.9
	759.1

	Additions
	5.1
	0.4
	15.5
	28.0
	49.0

	Disposals
	(0.4)
	–
	(5.6)
	–
	(6.0)

	Depreciation and amortisation
	–
	(27.9)
	(10.3)
	–
	(38.2)

	Assets received free of charge
	–
	–
	0.2
	–
	0.2

	Assets given free of charge
	(0.5)
	(0.3)
	(0.1)
	–
	(0.9)

	Transfers to assets held for sale
	–
	–
	(0.9)
	–
	(0.9)

	Transfer between classes
	–
	30.0
	–
	(35.1)
	(5.1)

	Balance at 1 July 2015
	673.4
	668.9
	55.6
	15.7
	1,413.6

	Capital contributed from asset transfers
	1.6
	0.3
	–
	–
	1.9

	Additions
	5.1
	1.8
	35.6
	34.7
	77.3

	Disposals
	(1.2)
	–
	(12.2)
	–
	(13.5)

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	122.7
	(0.1)
	–
	–
	122.6

	Depreciation and amortisation
	–
	(36.2)
	(21.1)
	–
	(57.2)

	Assets received free of charge
	1.5
	4.5
	2.7
	–
	8.7

	Assets given free of charge
	(5.0)
	(1.3)
	(0.4)
	–
	(6.8)

	Transfer in/out of assets under construction
	1.0
	29.4
	–
	(30.4)
	–

	Transfers (to)/from assets held for sale
	(23.5)
	–
	0.3
	–
	(23.2)

	Balance at 30 June 2016
	775.5
	667.3
	60.5
	20.0
	1,523.4


Movements in carrying amounts – Youth Justice purpose group

	
	Land at fair value
$M
	Buildings at fair value
$M
	Plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value
$M
	Assets under construction at cost
$M
	Total

$M

	Balance at 1 July 2014
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Machinery of Government transfer in (i)
	58.1
	38.8
	0.6
	50.9
	148.4

	Additions
	–
	–
	0.1
	7.5
	7.6

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements) (ii)
	27.9
	26.8
	–
	–
	54.7

	Depreciation and amortisation
	–
	(0.5)
	–
	–
	(0.5)

	Transfers from/(to) other purpose groups
	–
	58.4
	–
	(58.4)
	–

	Balance at 1 July 2015
	86.0
	123.5
	0.7
	–
	210.2

	Additions
	–
	3.1
	0.2
	3.6
	6.8

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	0.1

	Depreciation and amortisation
	–
	(3.4)
	(0.1)
	–
	(3.5)

	Balance at 30 June 2016
	86.1
	123.2
	0.8
	3.6
	213.7
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Note 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a) Reconciliations of the movement in carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the financial year are set out below. (continued)
Movements in carrying amounts – Community Housing purpose group

	
	Land at fair value

$M
	Buildings at fair value

$M
	Plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value

$M
	Assets under construction at cost

$M
	Total

$M

	Balance at 1 July 2014
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Machinery of Government transfer in (i)
	12,024.2
	8,613.6
	0.5
	112.9
	20,751.2

	Additions
	–
	–
	–
	93.5
	93.5

	Disposals
	(26.9)
	(23.1)
	–
	–
	(50.0)

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	5.5
	(0.8)
	–
	–
	4.7

	Depreciation and amortisation
	–
	(97.6)
	(0.1)
	–
	(97.7)

	Transfers between classes
	(0.1)
	152.0
	–
	(151.9)
	–

	Assets received free of charge
	0.7
	0.4
	–
	–
	1.1

	Balance at 1 July 2015
	12,003.4
	8,644.5
	0.4
	54.5
	20,702.8

	Additions
	–
	–
	1.6
	222.9
	224.4

	Disposals

	(56.9)
	(82.1)
	–
	–
	(139.0)

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	2,347.9
	(2.0)
	–
	–
	2,345.9

	Depreciation and amortisation

	–
	(197.3)
	(0.2)
	–
	(197.4)

	Transfer in/out of assets under construction
	0.9
	205.9
	–
	(206.8)
	–

	Transfers to assets held for sale
	(0.2)
	(4.3)
	–
	–
	(4.5)

	Transfers to provision for equity reduction
	(0.2)
	(0.1)
	–
	–
	(0.2)

	Balance at 30 June 2016
	14,295.0
	8,564.7
	1.8
	70.6
	22,932.0


Movements in carrying amounts – Public Administration purpose group

	
	Land at fair value

$M
	Buildings at fair value

$M
	Plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value

$M
	Assets under construction at cost

$M
	Total

$M

	Balance at 1 July 2014
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Machinery of Government transfer in (i)
	6.5
	14.6
	–
	0.1
	21.2

	Depreciation and amortisation
	–
	(0.3)
	–
	–
	(0.3)

	Balance at 1 July 2015
	6.5
	14.3
	–
	0.1
	20.9

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	0.1

	Depreciation and amortisation
	–
	(0.6)
	–
	–
	(0.6)

	Transfer in/out of assets under construction
	–
	0.1
	–
	(0.1)
	–

	Balance at 30 June 2016
	6.6
	13.9
	–
	–
	20.5


Notes:

(i) The Machinery of Government transfer in represents the carrying amounts of assets transferred to the department from the Department of Human Services and the carrying amounts of assets relating to Sports and Recreation Victoria from the Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure as at 1 January 2015.

(ii) A fair valuation has taken place as at 30 June 2015 for the youth justice purpose group in accordance with AASB 13. The department has engaged the Valuer-General of Victoria as its independent valuation agency.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Note 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b)(i) Fair Value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2016

	
	Carrying amount

$M
	Fair value measurement at end 
of reporting period using:

	
	
	Level 1 (i) 

$M
	Level 2 (i)
$M
	Level 3 (i)
$M

	Land at fair value
	
	
	
	

	Non-specialised land
	14,636.4
	–
	14,632.0
	4.4

	Specialised land
	526.9
	–
	55.5
	471.4

	Total land at fair value
	15,163.2
	–
	14,687.4
	475.8

	Buildings at fair value
	
	
	
	

	Non-specialised building
	8,794.8
	–
	8,794.4
	0.4

	Specialised building
	562.2
	–
	1.0
	561.1

	Total buildings at fair value
	9,357.0
	–
	8,795.4
	561.6

	Plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value
	
	
	
	

	Plant and equipment
	14.1
	–
	–
	14.1

	Motor vehicles
	1.8
	–
	–
	1.8

	Total plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value
	15.8
	–
	–
	15.8


(b)(ii) Fair Value measurement for assets as at 30 June 2015

	
	Carrying amount

$M
	Fair value measurement at end 
of reporting period using:

	
	
	Level 1 (i)
$M
	Level 2 (i)
$M
	Level 3 (i)
$M

	Land at fair value
	
	
	
	

	Non-specialised land
	12,290.2
	–
	12,286.6
	3.6

	Specialised land
	479.0
	–
	49.1
	429.9

	Total land at fair value
	12,769.2
	–
	12,335.7
	433.5

	Buildings at fair value
	
	
	
	

	Non-specialised building
	8,871.7
	–
	8,871.2
	0.5

	Specialised building
	556.3
	–
	1.1
	555.2

	Total buildings at fair value
	9,428.0
	–
	8,872.3
	555.7

	Plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value
	
	
	
	

	Plant and equipment
	8.6
	–
	–
	8.6

	Motor vehicles
	1.3
	–
	–
	1.3

	Total plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value
	9.9
	–
	–
	9.9


Note:

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1(b). The department, in conjunction with Victorian Valuer-General, monitors the changes in the fair value of each asset and liability through relevant data sources to determine whether revaluation is required.

$2.3 million of non-specialised land has been transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 following asset consolidation and revaluation in 2015–16, see Note 11(c).
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Note 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings

Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are generally valued using the market approach. Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered to have nominal or no added improvement value. Non-specialised buildings, where there was no active market, have been valued using the depreciated replacement cost (DRC) approach.

A managerial revaluation of the department’s land asset class was undertaken in 2015–16 in accordance with FRD103F which specifies that ‘...a managerial revaluation will be performed in non-scheduled years, where the cumulative movement in indexed valuations is ‘material’ (greater than 10%)’. The cumulative movement for the department’s property asset class was calculated as being 19.5%, and a revaluation was performed using the indexed valuations provided by the Victorian Valuer-General. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2016. The cumulative movement in the department’s building asset class was below the 10% threshold needed to trigger an interim managerial revaluation.

Director of Housing land and buildings are held in Level 2 as it is considered that each residential dwelling assessed has an active and liquid market, if not for its ownership and on-going use by the Department of Health and Human Services for housing purposes. As such, the market value of each residential asset has been determined by having regard to its highest and best use.

Specialised land and specialised buildings

The market approach is used for specialised land, although may be adjusted for a community service obligation (CSO). The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible, and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land with a CSO adjustment would be classified as Level 3 assets.

For the majority of the department’s specialised buildings, the DRC method is used. As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant, unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings using the DRC valuation method are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements. Where the valuer has used a market approach to value specialised buildings, these are classified as Level 2 fair value measurements.

An independent valuation of the departments’ specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria in June 2014 using either the market approach or the DRC approach.

A managerial revaluation of the department’s property asset class was undertaken in 2015–16 in accordance with FRD103F which specifies that ‘...a managerial revaluation will be performed in non-scheduled years, where the cumulative movement in indexed valuations is ‘material’ (greater than 10%)’. The cumulative movement for the department’s property asset class was calculated as being 19.5%, and a revaluation was performed using the indexed valuations provided by the Victorian Valuer-General. The effective date of of the valuation is 30 June 2016. The cumulative movement in the department’s building asset class was below the 10% threshold needed to trigger an interim managerial revaluation.

Vehicles

Vehicles are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. The department acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before the end of their economic life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is predominantly managed by experienced fleet managers in the department who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the utilisation of the vehicles.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is held at fair value. When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, fair value is determined using the depreciated replacement cost method.

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2016.

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.
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Note 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value as at 30 June 2016

	
	Non-specialised land

$M
	Specialised land

$M
	Non-specialised buildings

$M
	Specialised buildings

$M
	Plant and equipment

$M
	Motor
vehicles

$M
	Total

$M

	Balance at 1 July 2015
	3.6
	429.9
	0.5
	555.2
	8.6
	1.3
	999.1

	Equity transfer from another department
	–
	1.6
	–
	0.3
	–
	–
	1.9

	Additions
	–
	22.7
	–
	28.0
	11.4
	1.0
	63.1

	Disposals
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(0.3)
	(0.1)
	(0.4)

	Transfer between classes
	–
	(23.5)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(23.5)

	Transfers in/(out) of Level 3
	–
	2.3
	–
	–
	–
	–
	2.3

	Gains or losses recognised in net result
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation
	–
	–
	–
	(24.4)
	(5.5)
	(0.5)
	(30.4)

	Impairment loss
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Assets received free of charge
	–
	1.5
	–
	4.5
	–
	–
	6.0

	Assets given free of charge
	–
	(5.0)
	–
	(1.3)
	–
	–
	(6.3)

	Subtotal
	–
	(3.5)
	–
	(21.2)
	(5.5)
	(0.5)
	(30.7)

	Gains or losses recognised in other economic flows – other comprehensive income
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	0.8
	41.9
	–
	(1.2)
	–
	–
	41.5

	Subtotal
	0.8
	41.9
	–
	(1.2)
	–
	–
	41.5

	Balance at 30 June 2016
	4.4
	471.4
	0.5
	561.1
	14.1
	1.8
	1,053.2
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Note 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value as at 30 June 2015

	
	Non-specialised land

$M
	Specialised land

$M
	Non-specialised buildings

$M
	Specialised buildings (i)
$M
	Plant and equipment

$M
	Motor vehicles

$M
	Total

$M

	Balance at 1 July 2014
	3.6
	246.1
	0.5
	307.3
	4.9
	0.2
	562.6

	Machinery of Government transfer in (i)
	–
	155.5
	–
	167.1
	4.0
	1.4
	328.0

	Additions
	–
	0.8
	–
	–
	2.3
	–
	3.1

	Disposals
	–
	(0.4)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(0.4)

	Transfer between classes
	–
	–
	–
	73.6
	–
	–
	73.6

	Gains or losses recognised in net result
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation
	–
	–
	–
	(18.7)
	(2.6)
	(0.3)
	(21.6)

	Impairment loss
	–
	–
	–
	(0.9)
	–
	–
	(0.9)

	Subtotal
	–
	–
	–
	(19.6)
	(2.6)
	(0.3)
	(22.5)

	Gains or losses recognised in other economic flows – other comprehensive income
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	–
	27.9
	–
	26.8
	–
	–
	54.7

	Subtotal
	–
	27.9
	–
	26.8
	–
	–
	54.7

	Balance at 30 June 2015
	3.6
	429.9
	0.5
	555.2
	8.6
	1.3
	999.1


Note:

(i) The Machinery of Government transfer in represents the carrying amounts of assets transferred to the department from the Department of Human Services and the carrying amounts of assets relating to Sports and Recreation Victoria from the Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure as at 1 January 2015.
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Note 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(d) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations

	
	Valuation technique
	Significant Unobservable Inputs

	Non-specialised land
	Market approach
	Community Service Obligation (CSO adjustment

	Specialised land
	Market approach
	Community Service Obligation (CSO) adjustment

	Non-specialised buildings
	Depreciated replacement cost
	Direct cost per square metre

Useful life of non-specialised buildings

	Specialised buildings
	Depreciated replacement cost
	Direct cost per square metre

Useful life of specialised buildings

	Plant and equipment
	Depreciated replacement cost
	Useful life of equipment

	Vehicles
	Depreciated replacement cost
	Useful life of vehicles


Note 12. Intangible assets

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Software at cost
	93.4
	106.6

	Software – development in progress
	18.1
	12.0

	Less accumulated amortisation
	(42.2)
	(37.6)

	Total intangible assets
	69.3
	81.0

	Movement in carrying amounts
	
	

	Opening balance
	81.0
	9.8

	Machinery of Government transfer in (i)
	–
	79.7

	Additions from internal developments
	13.4
	4.1

	Additions
	2.0
	0.9

	Disposals or classified as held for sale
	(3.0)
	–

	Less amortisation of intangible produced assets (ii)
	(24.0)
	(13.5)

	Closing balance
	69.3
	81.0


Notes:

(i) The Machinery of Government transfer in represents the carrying amounts of assets transferred to the department from the Department of Human Services and the carrying amounts of assets relating to Sports and Recreation Victoria from the Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure as at 1 January 2015.

(ii) The consumption of intangible produced assets is included in ‘depreciation and amortisation’ line item, where the consumption of intangible non-produced assets is included in ‘net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets’ line item on the comprehensive operating statement.
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Note 13. Payables

	
	2016
$M
	2015

$M

	Current payables
	
	

	Statutory
	
	

	FBT Payable
	0.8
	1.3

	Contractual
	
	

	Employee benefits payable
	8.2
	14.6

	Supplies and services (i)
	59.9
	64.3

	Amounts payable to government agencies (ii)
	244.8
	104.1

	Concession payments to pensioners
	114.7
	93.0

	Tenants in advance
	22.6
	16.9

	Capital works
	22.6
	21.8

	Housing debt liability to the Department of Treasury and Finance (iii)
	–
	31.9

	Other
	42.6
	29.7

	Total current payables
	516.4
	377.6

	Non-current payables
	
	

	Contractual
	
	

	Amounts payable to government agencies (ii)
	437.9
	365.4

	Housing debt liability to the Department of Treasury and Finance (iii)
	–
	282.9

	Other
	0.8
	0.8

	Total non-current payables
	438.6
	649.1

	Total payables
	955.0
	1,026.7


Notes:

(i) The average credit period is 30 days. No interest is charged on these payables.

(ii) Terms and conditions of amounts payable to other government agencies vary according to a particular agreement with that agency.

(iii) The Director of Housing had an existing loan with the Government which was provided to grow public housing and homeownership. For administrative simplicity, the Government has forgiven the outstanding balance of the loan on 14 April 2016 and the Director of Housing will no longer be required to make repayments. Instead, grant revenue provided to the Director of Housing will be reduced by an amount equal to the annual repayment. See Note 4(d).

From 2023–24, debt repayments from the Director of Housing will revert to the conditions of the original Deed of Assumption and continue until 
2041–42. These conditions stipulate that payments beyond 2023 will be determined annually by the Treasurer in consultation with the Director and Minister for Housing. Accordingly a liability (and corresponding expense) for payments that may possibly arise after 2023 have not been included within these financial statements as a present obligation does not currently exist.

(a) Maturity analysis of contractual payables

Refer to Note 17 for the maturity analysis of contractual payables.

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual payables
Refer to Note 17 for the nature and extent of risk arising from payables.
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Note 14. Borrowings

	
	Note
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Current borrowings
	
	
	

	Statutory
	
	
	

	Advances from Victorian Government (i)
	
	41.7
	40.3

	Contractual
	
	
	

	Other borrowings
	
	–
	1.0

	Finance lease liabilities (ii)
	14(d)
	23.0
	24.1

	Total current borrowings
	
	64.7
	65.4

	Non-current borrowings
	
	
	

	Statutory
	
	
	

	Advances from Victorian Government (i)
	
	13.4
	13.4

	Contractual
	
	
	

	Other borrowings
	
	–
	–

	Finance lease liabilities (ii)
	14(d)
	25.8
	24.5

	Total non-current borrowings
	
	39.2
	37.9

	Total borrowings
	
	103.9
	103.3


Notes:

(i) Advances from Victorian Government are advances from the Department of Treasury and Finance. These advances are non-interest bearing.
(ii) Secured by the assets leased. Finance leases are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

(a) Maturity analysis of contractual borrowings
Refer to Note 17 for the maturity analysis of contractual borrowings.

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual borrowings

Refer to Note 17 for the nature and extent of risk arising from contractual borrowings.

(c) Defaults and breaches

During the current and previous financial year, there were no defaults or breaches of required conditions, in relation to any of the borrowings.
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Note 14. Borrowings (continued)
(d) Leases
Finance lease liabilities – lessees
	
	Minimum future lease payments (i)
	Present value of minimum future lease payments

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Finance lease liabilities payable (ii)
	
	
	
	

	Not longer than one year
	24.5
	25.8
	23.0
	24.5

	Longer than one year but not longer than five years
	26.6
	25.5
	25.8
	24.2

	Longer than five years
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Minimum future lease liabilities payable
	51.1
	51.3
	48.8
	48.6

	Less future finance charges
	(2.2)
	(2.7)
	–
	–

	Present value of minimum lease payments
	48.8
	48.6
	48.8
	48.6

	Included in the financial statements as:
	
	
	
	

	Current borrowings lease liabilities (Note 14)
	–
	–
	23.0
	24.1

	Non-current borrowings lease liabilities (Note 14)
	–
	–
	25.8
	24.5

	Total Finance lease liabilities
	–
	–
	48.8
	48.6


Notes:

(i) Minimum future lease payments include the aggregate of all base payments and any guaranteed residual.

(ii) Finance lease liabilities include obligations that are recognised in the balance sheet; the future payments related to operating and lease commitments are disclosed in Note 22.

(e) Operating leases – lessees

Refer to Note 22 (a).

(f) Operating leases – lessors

The Department of Health and Human Services provides rental accommodation for a range of clients. There are approximately 74,000 public rental units that are owned and operated by the Director of Housing which have week to week tenancy agreements.

These agreements are subject to the Residential Tenancy Act provisions which allow termination of a lease under certain circumstances, accordingly the future revenue streams from the lease agreements are not required to be reported under AASB 117.
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Note 15. Provisions

	
	Note
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Current provisions
	
	
	

	Employee benefits (i)
	15(a)
	289.5
	256.9

	Employee benefit on-costs
	15(b)
	49.7
	43.8

	Other (iii)
	15(c)
	48.7
	19.6

	Total current provisions
	
	387.9
	320.3

	Non-current provisions
	
	
	

	Employee benefits (i)
	15(a)
	57.6
	61.8

	Employee benefit on-costs
	15(b)
	4.0
	4.2

	Other (iii)
	15(c)
	33.8
	47.7

	Total non-current provisions
	
	95.5
	113.7

	Total provisions
	
	483.4
	434.0

	(a) Employee benefits (i)
	
	
	

	Current employee benefits:
	
	
	

	Salaries and wages
	
	13.0
	8.5

	Annual leave
	
	
	

	Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
	
	67.4
	63.8

	Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (ii)
	
	32.9
	31.0

	Long service leave
	
	
	

	Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
	
	22.3
	13.2

	Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (ii)
	
	150.8
	135.5

	Superannuation
	
	
	

	Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
	15(d)
	3.0
	4.9

	Total current employee benefits
	
	289.5
	256.9

	Non-current employee benefits:
	
	
	

	Conditional long service leave entitlements (ii)
	
	22.2
	23.7

	Superannuation
	15(d)
	35.4
	38.1

	Total non-current employee benefits
	
	57.6
	61.8

	Total employee benefits
	
	347.1
	318.7

	(b) Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs
	
	
	

	Current on-costs
	
	
	

	Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
	
	16.3
	14.0

	Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (ii)
	
	33.4
	29.8

	Total current on-costs
	
	49.7
	43.8

	Non-current on-costs (ii)
	
	4.0
	4.2

	Total on-costs
	
	53.8
	48.0

	Total employee benefits and on-costs
	
	400.9
	366.7


Notes:

(i) Employee benefits consist of annual leave and long service leave accrued by employees. On-costs such as payroll tax and workers’ compensation insurance are not employee benefits and are reflected as a separate provision.

(ii) The amounts are measured at present values.

(iii) The department engaged the Victorian Managed Insurance Authority (VMIA) under a claims administration agreement to manage non-medical indemnity claims resulting from public healthcare incidents occurring on or after 1 July 2005. These claims are managed by VMIA on behalf of the department under a service level agreement. VMIA has engaged an independent actuary to determine these liability provisions in accordance with the Institute of Actuaries of Australia’s professional standard PS300. The estimation of outstanding claims liabilities is based on actuarial modelling including analysis of claims experience, loss trends, risk exposure data and industry data.
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Note 15. Provisions (continued)
(c) Movement in other provisions

Other provisions include provisions to restore leased premises to their original condition at the end of the lease term and departmental funds reserved against the outstanding liability estimates on various insurance arrangements in respect of which the department retains a high level of self insurance per insured event.

	
	Make-good

2016

$M
	Insurance

2016

$M
	Total

2016

$M

	Opening balance
	1.6
	65.7
	67.3

	Reductions arising from payments/claims handling expenses
	–
	(22.5)
	(22.5)

	Actuarial revaluations of insurance claims liability inclusive of risk margin
	–
	37.5
	37.5

	Reductions resulting from re-measurement or settlement without cost
	(0.8)
	–
	(0.8)

	Unwind of discount and effect of changes in the discount rate
	–
	1.0
	1.0

	Closing balance
	0.8
	81.8
	82.5
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Note 15. Provisions (continued)
(d) Superannuation

Employees of the department are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the department contributes to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

The defined benefit plans provide benefits based on years of service and final average salary.

Other than the former employees of the Director of Housing, the department does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plans because the department has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. DTF discloses the State’s defined benefit liabilities in its disclosure for administered items.

However, superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of the department.

The liability with respect to superannuation fund for the former Director of Housing employees represents the shortfall between the total net assets of the superannuation fund at 30 June 2016 and the total benefits that members have accrued up to that date, determined by an actuarial assessment. Information relating to the fund based on the latest actuarial assessment for 30 June 2016 is set out below. The department reports a liability for unfunded superannuation in respect of former employees of the Director of Housing for the shortfall of superannuation benefits paid to certain former housing staff (refer Note 1(m)).

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Reconciliation of the superannuation liability in the balance sheet
	
	

	Defined benefit obligation
	38.5
	41.3

	Net liability/(asset)
	38.5
	41.3

	Less plan assets
	–
	(1.7)

	Total obligation and liability in the balance sheet
	38.5
	43.0

	Represented by:
	
	

	Current liability
	3.0
	4.9

	Non-current liability
	35.4
	38.1

	Total liability
	38.5
	43.0

	Principal actuarial assumptions
	
	

	Discount rate
	2.7%
	3.2%

	Expected rate of salary increase
	3.3%
	3.7%

	Inflation
	1.8%
	2.2%

	Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in the current period were as follows:
	
	

	Opening balance of defined benefit obligation
	41.3
	45.4

	Interest cost
	1.3
	0.9

	Actuarial losses/(gains)
	(0.9)
	(3.3)

	Benefits paid
	(3.2)
	(1.7)

	Closing balance of defined benefit obligation
	38.4
	41.3

	Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

Movements in the present value of the plan assets in the current period were as follows:
	
	

	Opening balance of plan assets
	–
	–

	Contributions from the employer
	3.2
	1.7

	Benefits paid
	(3.2)
	(1.7)

	Closing balance of plan assets
	–
	–

	Superannuation expense recognised in the comprehensive operating statement
	
	

	Interest cost
	1.3
	0.9

	Actuarial losses/(gains)
	(0.9)
	(3.3)

	Total expense recognised in respect of defined benefit plans
	0.4
	(2.4)


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 16. Equity

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	(a) Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
	
	

	Balance at beginning of financial year
	1,094.8
	1,088.5

	Net result for the year
	601.5
	3.0

	Remeasurement of superannuation defined benefit plans
	0.9
	3.3

	Balance at the end of financial year
	1,697.2
	1,094.8

	(b) Physical asset revaluation reserve
	
	

	Balance at beginning of financial year
	76.4
	17.0

	Revaluation of land and buildings
	2,468.7
	59.4

	Balance at the end of financial year
	2,545.1
	76.4

	(c) Contributed capital
	
	

	Balance at beginning of financial year
	22,365.0
	566.1

	Machinery of Government transfer in
	–
	21,728.8

	Capital contributed from asset transfers
	1.9
	–

	Capital contributions to health agencies
	(96.0)
	(225.8)

	Capital contributions by Victorian State Government
	107.7
	295.9

	Balance at the end of financial year
	22,378.5
	22,365.0


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The department’s principal financial instruments comprise:

· cash assets;

· term deposits;

· receivables (excluding statutory receivables);

· loans receivable;

· payables (excluding statutory payables);

· borrowings; and

· finance lease payables.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage the department’s financial risks within the government policy parameters.

The department’s main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The department manages these financial risks in accordance with its financial risk management policy.

The department uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed.

The carrying amounts of the department’s contractual financial assets and financial liabilities by category are disclosed in Note 17(b) below.

(b) Categorisation of financial instruments

	
	Note
	Contractual financial assets – loans and receivables

$M
	Contractual financial liabilities at amortised cost

$M
	Total
$M

	2016
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	7
	230.8
	–
	230.8

	Receivables (i)
	8
	75.5
	–
	75.5

	Loans
	9
	83.3
	–
	83.3

	Short term investments – term deposits
	
	346.8
	–
	346.8

	Total contractual financial assets
	
	736.4
	–
	736.4

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	

	Payables (i)
	13
	–
	954.2
	954.2

	Borrowings (i)
	14
	–
	48.8
	48.8

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	
	–
	1,003.0
	1,003.0

	2015
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	7
	369.4
	–
	369.4

	Receivables (i)
	8
	86.1
	–
	86.1

	Loans
	9
	80.4
	–
	80.4

	Short term investments – term deposits
	
	121.7
	–
	121.7

	Total contractual financial assets
	
	657.6
	–
	657.6

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	

	Payables (i)
	13
	–
	1,025.4
	1,025.4

	Borrowings (i)
	14
	–
	49.6
	49.6

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	
	–
	1,075.0
	1,075.0


Note:

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts e.g. amounts owing to/from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category

The net holding gains or losses are determined as follows:

· For cash and deposits and loans or receivables, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the movement in fair value of the asset, interest income, minus any impairment recognised in the net result; and

· For financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the net gain or loss is the interest expense on financial liabilities.

	
	Note
	Total interest income/ (expense)

$M
	Total

$M

	2016
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	4(a)
	–
	–

	Loans
	4(a)
	1.0
	1.0

	Short term investments – term deposits
	4(a)
	8.4
	8.4

	Total contractual financial assets
	
	9.4
	9.4

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	

	Payables (i)
	5(c)
	–
	–

	Borrowings (i)
	5(c)
	(0.3)
	(0.3)

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	
	(0.3)
	(0.3)

	2015
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	4(a)
	–
	–

	Loans
	4(a)
	0.4
	0.4

	Short Term Investments – term deposits
	4(a)
	4.7
	4.7

	Total contractual financial assets
	
	5.1
	5.1

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	

	Payables (i)
	5(c)
	(10.2)
	(10.2)

	Borrowings (i)
	5(c)
	(0.5)
	(0.5)

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	
	(10.7)
	(10.7)


Note:

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts e.g amounts owing to/from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of the department, which comprise cash and deposits, non-statutory receivables and loans. The department’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of a counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the department. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.

Credit risk associated with the department’s cash and deposits is minimal because it is the department’s policy to only deal with entities with high credit ratings.

Receivables are mainly with government organisations whose credit risks are considered insignificant and the remainder are from small non-government entities and individuals with immaterial amounts.

Allowance for impairment for financial assets is calculated based on past experience, and current and expected changes in client credit ratings, or when there is objective evidence that the department will not be able to collect a receivable. Tenant loans are made up of small amounts therefore the likelihood of default are considered immaterial.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial report, net of any allowances for losses, represents the department’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

	
	Financial institutions Double-A credit rating

Total

$M
	Government agencies Triple-A credit rating

Total

$M
	Credit ratings not disclosed

$M
	Total

$M

	2016
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	27.2
	203.6
	–
	230.8

	Receivables (i) (ii)
	–
	–
	75.5
	75.5

	Loans (ii)
	–
	–
	83.3
	83.3

	Short term investments – term deposits
	–
	346.8
	–
	346.8

	Total contractual financial assets
	27.2
	550.4
	158.8
	736.4

	2015
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	14.5
	354.9
	–
	369.4

	Receivables (i) (ii)
	–
	–
	86.1
	86.1

	Loans (ii)
	–
	–
	80.4
	80.4

	Short term investments – term deposits
	–
	121.7
	–
	121.7

	Total contractual financial assets
	14.5
	476.6
	166.5
	657.6


Note:

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government, GST input tax credit recoverable and other taxes payable.

(ii) The carrying amounts consist of amounts due from numerous counterparties for which no credit ratings have been disclosed due to impracticability.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Credit Risk (continued)

Ageing analysis of contractual financial assets

Currently the department does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to any of its financial assets.
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.

There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The following table discloses the ageing only of contractual financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

	
	Carrying amount

$M
	Not past due and not impaired (ii)
$M
	Past due but not impaired
	Impaired financial assets

$M

	
	
	
	Less than 1 month

$M
	1–3 months

$M
	3 months–1 year

$M
	1–5 years

$M
	

	2016
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	230.8
	230.8
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Receivables (i)
	75.5
	42.3
	5.2
	5.3
	8.3
	8.9
	5.6

	Loans
	83.3
	45.6
	–
	–
	7.5
	29.8
	0.4

	Short term investments – term deposits
	346.8
	–
	–
	–
	346.8
	–
	–

	Total contractual financial assets
	736.4
	318.7
	5.2
	5.3
	362.7
	38.6
	6.0

	2015
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	369.4
	369.4
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Receivables (i)
	86.1
	10.5
	3.0
	18.6
	40.4
	6.9
	6.7

	Loans
	80.4
	48.5
	–
	–
	4.2
	27.3
	0.4

	Short term investments – term deposits
	121.7
	–
	–
	–
	121.7
	–
	–

	Total contractual financial assets
	657.6
	428.4
	3.0
	18.6
	166.3
	34.2
	7.1


Note:

(i) The carrying amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government, GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable.

(ii) The amounts disclosed here includes repayments of borrowings that are not scheduled to be repaid in the next 12 months.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the department is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The department operates under the government fair payments policy of settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, make payments within 30 days from the date of resolution. It also continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows, and maturities planning, to ensure adequate holding of high quality liquid assets and dealing in highly liquid markets and maintaining a high credit rating for the State of Victoria (Moody’s Investor Services, Standard & Poor’s triple-A), which assist in accessing debt market at a lower interest rate.

The department’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk.

The department’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities.

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the department’s financial liabilities:

Maturity analysis of contractual financial liabilities(i)
	
	Carrying amount

$M
	Nominal amount

$M
	Maturity dates

	
	
	
	Less than 1 month

$M
	1–3 months

$M
	3 months–1 year

$M
	1–5 years

$M
	5+ years

$M

	2016
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables (ii)
	954.2
	954.2
	382.2
	14.4
	119.2
	438.5
	(0.1)

	Borrowings (ii)
	48.8
	51.1
	4.3
	3.2
	17.0
	26.6
	–

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	1,003.0
	1,005.3
	386.5
	17.6
	136.2
	465.1
	(0.1)

	2015
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables (ii)
	1,025.4
	1,025.4
	231.3
	65.1
	113.8
	480.1
	135.1

	Borrowings (ii)
	49.6
	52.3
	7.3
	4.3
	16.4
	24.3
	–

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	1,075.0
	1,077.7
	238.6
	69.4
	130.2
	504.4
	135.1


Note:

(i) Maturity analysis is presented using the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

(ii) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts e.g amounts owing to/from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments (continued)

(f) Market risk

The department’s exposures to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk. The department’s exposure to other price risks is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The department does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk is insignificant and might arise primarily through the department’s interest bearing assets. Minimisation of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments. For financial liabilities, the department mainly incurs financial liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to interest rates are set out below.

Interest rate exposure of financial instruments

	
	Weighted average effective interest rate

(%)
	Carrying amount

$M
	Interest rate exposure

	
	
	
	Fixed interest rate

$M
	Variable interest rate

$M
	Non-interest bearing
$M

	2016
	
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits (i)
	1.6%
	230.8
	20.0
	68.9
	141.9

	Receivables (ii) (iii)
	
	75.5
	–
	–
	75.5

	Loans
	3.3%
	83.3
	3.0
	18.6
	61.7

	Short term investments – term deposits
	2.2%
	346.8
	346.8
	–
	–

	Total
	
	736.4
	369.8
	87.5
	279.1

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables (iii)
	
	954.2
	–
	–
	954.2

	Borrowings (iii) (iv)
	4.2%
	48.8
	48.8
	–
	–

	Total
	
	1,003.0
	48.8
	–
	954.2

	2015
	
	
	
	
	

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits (i)
	1.6%
	369.4
	172.2
	38.3
	158.9

	Receivables (ii) (iii)
	
	86.1
	–
	–
	86.1

	Loans
	3.5%
	80.4
	3.5
	20.6
	56.3

	Short term investments – term deposits
	2.2%
	121.7
	121.7
	–
	–

	Total
	
	657.6
	297.4
	58.9
	301.3

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables (iii)
	
	1,025.4
	–
	–
	1,025.4

	Borrowings (iii) (iv)
	5.2%
	49.6
	49.6
	–
	–

	Total
	
	1,075.0
	49.6
	–
	1,025.4


Notes:

(i) All cash and deposits are held in Australian dollars and were held on deposits at fixed and variable interest rates. This item is not subject to any other identified risk sensitivities.

(ii) The carrying amount is denominated in Australian dollars and is non-interest bearing. This item is not subject to the identified risk sensitivities.

(iii) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts e.g. amounts owing to/from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable.

(iv) Borrowings are denominated in Australian dollars. $48.8M (2015 – $49.6M) relate to finance lease liabilities associated with motor vehicles. Each contract has interest fixed at the inception of the lease. This item is not subject to identified risk sensitivity.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments (continued)

(f) Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity disclosure analysis and assumptions

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management’s knowledge and experience of the financial markets, the department believes the following movements are ‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12 months:

· A shift of +0.25% and –0.25% (2015: +0.25% and –0.25%) in market interest rates (AUD) from year end cash deposits.

Several loan programs have loans with interest rates linked to movement in the consumer price index (CPI). The total balances outstanding under these programs have reduced to a level that any changes to the CPI have a limited impact on the amount of interest charged and no new lending is made under these programs.

The following table discloses the impact on the net operating result for each category of financial instrument held by the department at year-end as presented to key management personnel, if the above movements were to occur.
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

	2016
	Carrying amount

$M
	Interest rate risk
	Consumer Price Index (CPI)

	
	
	–0.25%

Net result

$M
	+0.25%

Net result

$M
	–0.25%

Net result

$M
	1.50%

Net result

$M

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits (i)
	230.8
	(0.2)
	0.2
	–
	–

	Receivables (ii) (v)
	75.5
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Loans (iii)
	83.3
	(0.0)
	0.0
	(0.0)
	0.3

	Short term investments – term deposits
	346.8
	(0.9)
	0.9
	–
	–

	Total impact
	736.4
	(1.1)
	1.1
	(0.0)
	0.3

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables (iii)
	954.2
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Borrowings (iii) (iv)
	48.8
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Total impact
	1,003.0
	–
	–
	–
	–


	2015
	Carrying amount

$M
	Interest rate risk
	Consumer Price Index (CPI)

	
	
	–0.25%

Net result

$M
	+0.25%

Net result

$M
	–0.25%

Net result

$M
	3.00%

Net result

$M

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits (i)
	369.4
	(0.5)
	0.5
	–
	–

	Receivables (ii) (v)
	86.1
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Loans (iii)
	80.4
	–
	–
	(0.1)
	0.6

	Short term investments – term deposits
	121.7
	(0.3)
	0.3
	–
	–

	Total impact
	657.6
	(0.8)
	0.8
	(0.1)
	0.6

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables (iii)
	1,025.4
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Borrowings (iii) (iv)
	49.6
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Total impact
	1,075.0
	–
	–
	–
	–


Note:

(i) All cash and deposits are held in Australian dollars and were held on deposits at fixed and variable interest rates. This item is not subject to any other identified risk sensitivities.

(ii) The carrying amount is denominated in Australian dollars and is non-interest bearing. This item is not subject to the identified risk sensitivities.

(iii) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts e.g. amounts owing to/from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable.

(iv) Borrowings are denominated in Australian dollars. $48.8M (2015 – $49.6 M) relates to finance lease liabilities associated with motor vehicles. Each contract has interest fixed at the inception of the lease.

(v) The carrying amount is denominated in Australian dollars and is interest bearing. This item is subject to minimal identified risk sensitivities.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 17. Financial instruments (continued)

(g) Fair value

The department considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements to be a fair approximation of their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation that they be paid in full.

Comparison between carrying amount and fair value

	
	Note
	Carrying amount

2016

$M
	Fair value

2016

$M
	Carrying amount

2015

$M
	Fair value

2015

$M

	Contractual financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	7
	230.8
	230.8
	369.4
	369.4

	Receivables (i)
	8
	75.5
	69.8
	86.1
	79.4

	Loans
	9
	83.3
	83.0
	80.4
	80.0

	Short term investments – term deposits
	
	346.8
	346.8
	121.7
	121.7

	Total contractual financial assets
	
	736.4
	730.4
	657.6
	650.5

	Contractual financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables
	13
	954.2
	954.2
	1,025.4
	1,025.4

	Borrowings (i)
	14
	48.8
	48.8
	49.6
	49.6

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	
	1,003.0
	1,003.0
	1,075.0
	1,075.0


Note:

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts, e.g amounts owing to/from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable and taxes payable.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 18. Responsible persons

In accordance with the Directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 the following disclosures are made for the responsible persons for the reporting period.

(a) Names

The persons who held the positions of ministers and accountable officers in the department are as follows:

	Minister for Ambulance Services
	The Hon. Jill Hennessy MP
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Health
	The Hon. Jill Hennessy MP
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Housing
	The Hon. Martin Foley MP
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Disability
	The Hon. Martin Foley MP
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Ageing
	The Hon. Martin Foley MP
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Mental Health
	The Hon. Martin Foley MP
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Families and Children
	The Hon. Jenny Mikakos MLC
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Youth Affairs
	The Hon. Jenny Mikakos MLC
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Minister for Sport
	The Hon. John Eren MP
	1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Secretary, Department of Health and Human Services
	Dr Pradeep Philip
	1 July 2015 to 20 September 2015

	Secretary, Department of Health and Human Services
	Kym Peake
	21 September 2015 to 30 June 2016

	Acting Secretary, Department of Health and Human Services
	Lance Wallace
	22 December 2015 to 24 December 2015

	Acting Secretary, Department of Health and Human Services
	Amanda Cattermole
	25 December 2015 to 10 January 2016

	Director of Housing under the Housing Act 1983
	Arthur Rogers
	1 July 2015 to 4 March 2016

	Director of Housing under the Housing Act 1983
	Anne Congleton
	5 March 2016 to 3 April 2016

	Director of Housing under the Housing Act 1983
	Nicholas Foa
	4 April 2016 to 30 June 2016

	Acting Director of Housing under the Housing Act 1983
	Anne Congleton
	5 May 2016 to 18 May 2016


(b) Remuneration

Remuneration received by the accountable officers in connection with the management of the department during the reporting period was in the range:
	Income band
	Total Remuneration (i) (iii)
	Base Remuneration (ii)

	
	30 June 2016
	30 June 2015
	30 June 2016
	30 June 2015

	$110,000–$119,999
	1
	–
	1
	–

	$140,000–$149,999
	1
	–
	1
	–

	$160,000–$169,999
	–
	1
	–
	1

	$310,000–$319,999
	1
	–
	1
	–

	$330,000–$339,999
	–
	–
	1
	–

	$340,000–$349,999
	1
	–
	–
	–

	$490,000–$499,999
	–
	1
	–
	1

	Total
	4
	2
	4
	2

	Total remuneration (iv)
	$917,747
	$651,008
	$907,246
	$651,008


Amounts relating to ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

For information regarding related party transactions of ministers, the register of members’ interests is publicly available from: www.parliament.vic.gov.au/publications/register-of-interests
Notes:

(i) Total remuneration includes base remuneration plus annual and long service leave payments, high class duties allowance payments and annual bonus payments. These bonus payments depend on the terms of individual employment contracts.

(ii) Base remuneration excludes bonus payments, leave payments and high class duties.

(iii) Remuneration amounts relating to acting Responsible Persons are included in Remuneration of executives note.

(iv) The increase in remuneration for 2016 is attributable to the Machinery of Government changes effective from 1 January 2015 with the inclusion of accountable officers from the former Department of Human Services and Sport and Recreation Victoria. 2015/16 is the first time DHHS will report on a full 12 months basis. In the previous year, 2014/15, accountable officers from the former Department of Human Services and Sport Recreation Victoria were reported for the period 1/1/2015 to 30/6/2015 (6 months) only.
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Note 18. Responsible persons (continued)
(c) Related party transactions included in the reconciliation amount

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Kym Peake
	
	

	During her term as Secretary, Kym Peake was a member of The Institute of Public Administration Australia, Victorian Division.

The department paid grants and services on normal commercial terms to The Institute of Public Administration Australia, Victorian Division during her term.
	0.1
	–

	Total
	0.1
	–

	Amanda Cattermole
	
	

	During her term as A/Secretary, Amanda Cattermole was a Director of Cenitex.

The department paid grants on normal commercial terms to Cenitex during her term.
	24.0
	–

	Total
	24.0
	–

	Nicholas Foa
	
	

	During his term as Director of Housing, Nicholas Foa was a Director of The Australian Housing and Urban Research Institute.

The department paid grants and services on normal commercial terms to The Australian Housing and Urban Research Institute during the financial year.
	0.1
	–

	Total
	0.1
	–

	Pradeep Philip
	
	

	During his term as Secretary, Pradeep Philip was ex-officio member of the Anti-Cancer Council Victoria.

The department paid grants on normal commercial terms to the Anti-Cancer Council Victoria during his term.
	1.4
	14.4

	During his term as Secretary, Pradeep Philip was a director of the National E-Health Transition Authority Limited.

The department paid grants on normal commercial terms to the National E-Health Transition Authority Limited during his term.
	1.7
	8.5

	Total
	3.2
	22.9


The relevant amounts relating to ministers are reported separately in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 19. Remuneration of executives and payments to other personnel (i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities)

(a) Remuneration of executives

The numbers of executive officers, other than ministers and accountable officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the first two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, annual and long-service leave payments, high class duties, redundancy payments and retirement benefits. The total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full-time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.

Several factors have affected base and total remuneration payable to executive officers. A number of executive roles which were vacant in the previous reporting period were filled during the course of the year with pro-rata remuneration amounts being recorded. A number of executives received bonus payments during the year. The overall increase in total remuneration from last year’s figure is attributable to the increase in the annualised employee equivalent for the reporting period which represents the percentage of the year each executive was employed.

	Income band
	Total remuneration
	Base remuneration

	
	2016 (i)
No.
	2015

No.
	2016 (i)
No.
	2015

No.

	Under $100,000
	27
	64
	28
	64

	$100,000–$109,999
	1
	12
	3
	13

	$110,000–$119,999
	3
	6
	1
	6

	$120,000–$129,999
	3
	4
	5
	4

	$130,000–$139,999
	1
	5
	2
	4

	$140,000–$149,999
	2
	3
	2
	4

	$150,000–$159,999
	5
	4
	7
	4

	$160,000–$169,999
	8
	4
	7
	7

	$170,000–$179,999
	13
	7
	19
	6

	$180,000–$189,999
	12
	3
	13
	2

	$190,000–$199,999
	14
	2
	12
	2

	$200,000–$209,999
	10
	3
	4
	6

	$210,000–$219,999
	8
	3
	13
	1

	$220,000–$229,999
	9
	2
	5
	2

	$230,000–$239,999
	2
	2
	2
	2

	$240,000–$249,999
	4
	2
	6
	–

	$250,000–$259,999
	3
	1
	2
	–

	$260,000–$269,999
	3
	–
	–
	–

	$270,000–$279,999
	–
	–
	1
	2

	$280,000–$289,999
	4
	1
	8
	–

	$290,000–$299,999
	6
	1
	1
	1

	$300,000–$309,999
	2
	1
	1
	2

	$310,000–$319,999
	2
	1
	1
	–

	$320,000–$329,999
	–
	1
	–
	–

	$330,000–$339,999
	–
	–
	2
	–

	$340,000–$349,999
	2
	–
	–
	–

	$640,000–$649,999 (iii)
	1
	–
	–
	–

	Total number of executives
	145
	132
	145
	132

	Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) (ii)
	110.57
	80.93
	110.57
	80.93

	Total remuneration
	$26,224,490
	$16,690,126
	$24,560,684
	$16,075,819


Notes:

(i) The increase in remuneration for 2016 is attributable to the Machinery of Government changes effective from 1 January 2015 with the inclusion of executives from the former Department of Human Services and Sport and Recreation Victoria. 2015/16 is the first time DHHS will report on a full 12 months basis. In the previous year 2014/15, executives from the former Department of Human Services and Sport Recreation Victoria were reported for the period 1/1/2015 to 30/6/2015 (6 months) only.

This is the reason for the significant variance shown above. It should be noted that Executive remuneration for the former Department of Human Services, for the period 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014, (6 months) was shown as a separate table in the Annual Report for 2014/15.

(ii) The total annualised employee equivalent represents the equivalent to all executive officers working 38 ordinary hours per week over the full reporting period.

(iii) Includes payment to a long serving senior executive public servant who retired and includes accumulated long service leave and other entitlements.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 19. Remuneration of executives and payments to other personnel 
(i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities) (continued)
(b) Payments to other personnel (i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities)

The following disclosures are made in relation to contractors charged with significant management responsibilities.

The number of contractors with significant management responsibilities increased from 8 in 2014/15 to 12 in 2015/16, primarily due to the restructure of the Business Technology and Information Management Branch and the subsequent creation of the Health Technology Branch. Three contractors ceased engagements with the department during the reporting period, and one joined and subsequently departed. The responsibilities of two contractors changed during the period and were no longer considered to meet the definition of ‘significant management responsibility’. Expenditure for these engagements reflects the effective dates of these changes.

	Income band
	Total expenses 
(exclusive of GST)

	
	2016
	2015

	Under $150,000
	3
	2

	$150,000–$159,999
	1
	–

	$190,000–$199,999
	1
	–

	$200,000–$209,999
	1
	–

	$210,000–$219,000
	1
	–

	$270,000–$279,999
	1
	1

	$300,000–$309,999
	–
	1

	$330,000–$339,999
	1
	–

	$340,000–$349,999
	–
	1

	$370,000–$379,000
	1
	–

	$380,000–$389,999
	1
	1

	$410,000–$419,999
	–
	1

	$470,000–$479,000
	–
	1

	$520,000–$529,999
	1
	–

	Total number of contractors
	12
	8

	Total expenses (exclusive of GST)
	$2,958,383
	$2,456,608


Note 20. Remuneration of external auditors

	
	2016

$
	2015

$

	Victorian Auditor-General’s Office – audit of the financial report
	650,000
	481,925


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 21. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

	
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Contingent liabilities

Details and estimates of contingent liabilities are as follows:
	
	

	(a)
	In response to the concerns of some health services, the department has undertaken to provide certain health services adequate cash flow support to enable these health services to meet their current and future obligations as and when they fall due for a period up to September 2017 should this be required. In line with processes already established by the department, it is expected that each health service that has been pledged this support will:

–
continue to provide monthly advice on its financial position, including the likelihood of any short-term liquidity issues; and

–
commit to achieve the agreed budget targets, and all other requirements of their service agreements or statement of priorities in 2016–17.
	
	

	(b)
	There exists a building construction contractual dispute in which a Contractor claims to be entitled to a sum greater than the amount determined by the Superintendant (the independent assessor of claims under the contract) as being due to the Contractor under the contract with the department. The claim is being made against the department and the department denies liability for the amounts in excess of the amount determined by the Superintendant. The contract is otherwise complete.

The dispute is being progressed in accordance with the procedures set out in the Building and Construction Industry Security of Payment Act 2002 (the Act) for resolving such disputes. Under a construction contract, the Superintendant is the Principal’s representative (the Department is the Principal). When there is a dispute as to amounts owing under a construction contract dealt with under the Act, as in this case, the Principal is required to set the sum demanded aside while the dispute is resolved. The purpose of this is to ensure that the funds are available if the dispute were to be resolved in favour of the contractor.
	0.2
	0.2

	(c)
	The Department of Health and Human Services has estimated that potential liability exists in respect of a number of legal actions instigated by clients and their representatives, employees and others, and other contractual liabilities.
	9.9
	6.9

	Contingent assets

Details and estimates of contingent assets are as follows:
	
	

	(d)
	Bank guarantee held for:
	
	

	
	– satisfactory performance of IT Managed Services contract;
	–
	0.8

	
	– liquidation of contractors; and
	–
	0.1

	
	– building contracts.
	16.7
	12.0

	(e)
	Letter of comfort held for Community Chef recallable grant
	2.4
	2.9

	(f)
	The department provided recallable capital grants to a number of hospitals and these are recallable by way of future cash flow adjustments. The department has not taken any decision in respect of the need for the recipient hospitals to bear those future cash flow adjustments at this time. Decisions about whether recallable grants are to be repaid are solely at the discretion of the department in consideration of the outcomes arising from the expenditure of the grant funds and other policy considerations. As such, hospitals at this time have no obligation to repay the recallable grant unless the department determines at some point in the future that a cash flow adjustment in respect of the recallable grant is warranted.
	3.4
	9.4


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 22. Commitments for expenditure

(a) Commitments other than public private partnerships (i)
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	The following commitments have not been recognised as liabilities in the financial statements
	
	

	(i) Capital expenditure commitments
	
	

	Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
	96.6
	161.0

	Total capital expenditure commitments
	96.6
	161.0

	(ii) Operating lease commitments
	
	

	Properties and equipment
	483.2
	239.2

	Total operating lease commitments
	483.2
	239.2

	(iii) Other expenditure commitments
	
	

	Provision of services (ii)
	539.2
	366.5

	Total other expenditure commitments
	539.2
	366.5

	Total commitments for expenditure (inclusive of GST)
	1,119.0
	766.7


Notes:

(i) All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.

(ii) On 27 August 2013, the Minister for Health signed a Services Agreement Restructure Deed and other relevant documents in accordance with Part 3A of the Health Services Act 1988 with the owners of Mildura Base Hospital, the Motor Trades Association of Australia Superannuation Fund (MTAA), and the other parties to the transaction. In accordance with the restructure agreement, the MTAA agreed to surrender the 99 year lease of the site, transfer the building, plant and equipment on site to the State, and forego the service delivery franchise. In exchange the Government made a restructure fee payment to the MTAA and agreed to accept liability for the outstanding bond payments relating to a previous financing arrangement for the hospital. The formal transfer of the site occurring on 30 August 2013. Mildura Hospital continues to be operated by Ramsay Health Care Group until 15 September 2020. However, there is provision for a further two years extension if both the Minister and Ramsay Health Care Group agree. The commitment to pay this is further explained in Note 1(p).

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 22. Commitments for expenditure (continued)
(b) Public private partnerships (i) (ii)
Commissioned public private partnerships – other commitments (iii) (iv)
The following commitments have not been recognised as liabilities in the financial statements of the department (other than the finance lease commitments). They have been recognised in the financial statements of the respective Health Agency – refer to Note 1(q). Further, the nominal value only represents the service component.

The values of the Commissioned PPPs in this note only show the service components as the lease liabilities are already recognised in the respective Health Agency’s Financial Statements. Note 22(c) shows the total commitment payable by the department, incorporating both the service and liability components.

	
	2016

$M

Other commitments
	2015

$M

Other commitments

	
	Present value (i)
	Nominal value
	Present value (i)
	Nominal value

	Service concession arrangements
	
	
	
	

	Royal Women’s Hospital
	193.1
	398.6
	193.5
	414.4

	Casey Hospital
	61.8
	111.8
	62.0
	117.8

	Royal Children’s Hospital
	338.6
	803.4
	337.3
	834.7

	Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre (VCCC)
	847.6
	1,829.5
	–
	–

	Sub-total
	1441.1
	3,143.3
	592.8
	1,366.9


Uncommissioned public private partnerships – total commitments (v) (vi) (vii)
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	
	Minimum lease payments
	Other commit-ments
	Total commit-ments
	Minimum lease payments
	Other commit-ments
	Total commit-ments

	
	Discounted value
	Present value
	Nominal value
	Discounted value
	Present value
	Nominal value

	Bendigo Hospital
	287.8
	1,268.7
	2,961.3
	296.9
	1,225.3
	2,961.3

	Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre (VCCC)
	–
	–
	–
	1,050.4
	383.1
	3,199.8

	Sub-total
	
	1,268.7
	2,961.3
	
	1,608.4
	6,161.1

	Total commitments for public private partnerships
	
	2,709.8
	6,104.6
	
	2,206.2
	7,533.2


Notes:

(i) The present value of the minimum lease payments for commissioned public private partnerships (PPPs) are recognised in the balance sheet of the respective Health Agencies and are not disclosed as commitments.

(ii) The discounted values of the minimum lease payments for uncomissioned PPPs have been discounted to the projects’ expected dates of commissioning, and the present values of other commitments have been discounted to 30 June of the respective financial years. After adjusting for GST, the discounted values of minimum lease payments reflect the expected impact in the balance sheet when the PPPs are commissioned.

(iii) The year on year reduction in the nominal amounts of the other commitments reflects the payments made.

(iv) The year on year reduction in the present values of the other commitments mainly reflect the payments made, offset by the impact of the discounting period being one year shorter.

(v) The discounted values of the minimum lease payments have not been totalled for uncommissioned PPPs due to individual PPPs having different expected dates of commissioning.

(vi) The year on year increase in the present values of the other commitments for uncommissioned projects is due to discounting period being one year shorter.

(vii) Please note that the total commitments will not equal the sum of the minimum lease payments and other commitments because they are discounted, whereas total commitments are at nominal value.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 22. Commitments for expenditure (continued)
(c) Commitments payable (i) (ii)
	Nominal values
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	The following commitments have not been recognised as liabilities in the financial statements.
	
	

	(a) Capital expenditure commitments
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	70.2
	123.0

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	26.5
	38.0

	Total capital commitments
	96.7
	161.0

	(b) Operating lease commitments
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	59.0
	63.0

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	177.4
	76.7

	Longer than 5 years
	246.8
	99.5

	Total operating lease commitments
	483.2
	239.2

	(c) Service Concession Arrangements (PPP) related commitments (iii)
	
	

	(i) Royal Women’s Hospital
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	48.2
	45.0

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	194.1
	190.7

	Longer than 5 years
	681.6
	733.5

	Total Royal Women’s Hospital commitments
	923.9
	969.2

	(ii) Casey Hospital
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	14.6
	14.4

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	73.6
	72.8

	Longer than 5 years
	175.0
	193.1

	Total Casey Hospital commitments
	263.2
	280.3

	(iii) Royal Children’s Hospital
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	137.7
	135.4

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	601.4
	582.4

	Longer than 5 years
	3,020.5
	3,218.8

	Total Royal Children’s Hospital commitments
	3,759.6
	3,936.6

	(iv) Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	137.8
	2.9

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	671.7
	629.2

	Longer than 5 years
	2,274.4
	2,567.7

	Total Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre commitments
	3,083.9
	3,199.8

	(v) Bendigo Hospital
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	653.0
	–

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	287.1
	865.6

	Longer than 5 years
	2,021.3
	2,095.8

	Total Bendigo Hospital commitments
	2,961.4
	2,961.4

	Total Service Concession Arrangements (PPP) related commitments
	10,992.0
	11,347.3

	(d) Other expenditure commitments
	
	

	Commitments under contracts for operating expenditure (excluding operating lease commitments) outstanding as at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:
	
	

	Less than 1 year
	353.0
	272.5

	Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years
	186.2
	94.0

	Total other expenditure commitments
	539.2
	366.5

	Total commitments for expenditure (inclusive of GST)
	12,111.1
	12,114.0

	Less GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
	1,066.0
	1,072.4

	Total commitments for expenditure (exclusive of GST)
	11,045.1
	11,041.6


Notes:

(i) All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.

(ii) For future finance lease and non-cancellable operating lease payments that are recognised on the balance sheet, refer to Note 14(d) Leases.

(iii) Refer to Note 1(q) which sets out the Department’s accounting policy for the accounting treatment of service concession arrangements.
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 23. Administered (non-controlled) items

In addition to the specific departmental operations which are included in the financial statements (comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement), the department administers or manages other activities and resources on behalf of the State. The transactions relating to these State activities are reported as administered items in this note. Administered transactions give rise to income, expenses, assets and liabilities and are determined on an accrual basis. Administered income includes taxes, fees and fines and the proceeds from the sale of administered surplus land and buildings. Administered assets include government income earned but yet to be collected. Administered liabilities include government expenses incurred but yet to be paid. Both the controlled department financial statements and these administered items are consolidated into the financial statements of the State.

	(a) Output group (i)
2015–16
	Note
	1

$M
	2

$M
	3

$M
	4

$M
	5

$M
	6

$M
	7

$M
	8

$M
	9

$M
	10

$M
	11

$M
	12

$M
	13

$M
	14

$M
	Total

$M

	Administered income from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Commonwealth contribution to the national health reform
	
	3,585.0
	–
	408.0
	–
	9.9
	93.2
	36.7
	47.5
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	4,180.4

	State contribution to the national health reform
	
	3,918.6
	–
	172.3
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	4,090.9

	Commonwealth grants
	
	10.1
	–
	–
	27.9
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	1.2
	1.3
	–
	0.1
	–
	40.6

	Sales of goods and services
	
	286.9
	–
	14.7
	2.4
	3.6
	0.0
	0.0
	0.6
	27.4
	0.1
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0
	–
	335.7

	Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Interest income
	
	0.9
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.9

	Fees
	
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	8.6
	0.6
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	9.1

	Grants and other income transfers
	
	50.9
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0
	0.1
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0
	1.1
	0.0
	–
	52.2

	Other
	
	36.3
	0.0
	0.1
	0.0
	1.1
	0.0
	0.2
	0.0
	0.4
	0.3
	0.2
	2.1
	0.1
	–
	40.7

	Total administered income from transactions
	
	7,888.8
	0.0
	595.1
	30.4
	14.6
	93.2
	45.5
	48.7
	27.8
	1.5
	1.5
	3.2
	0.2
	–
	8,750.7

	Administered expenses from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grants and other expense transfers
	23(b)
	7,337.4
	–
	318.2
	–
	0.0
	0.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.1
	–
	–
	7,656.8

	Employee expenses
	
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Other operating expenses
	
	0.3
	–
	0.1
	–
	0.0
	–
	0.2
	0.0
	0.3
	0.3
	0.1
	0.1
	0.1
	–
	1.3

	Payments into the consolidated fund
	
	342.4
	(0.3)
	15.0
	30.5
	4.7
	0.0
	8.8
	1.2
	30.1
	1.3
	1.0
	1.6
	0.2
	–
	436.4

	Payment to the departmental controlled entity
	
	249.2
	–
	262.1
	–
	9.9
	93.2
	36.7
	47.5
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	698.7

	Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	Total administered expenses from transactions
	
	7,929.4
	(0.3)
	595.4
	30.5
	14.7
	93.2
	45.7
	48.8
	30.3
	1.6
	1.0
	2.7
	0.2
	–
	8,793.1

	Total administered net result from transactions
	
	(40.6)
	0.3
	(0.3)
	(0.2)
	(0.1)
	0.0
	(0.2)
	(0.0)
	(2.5)
	(0.0)
	0.4
	0.5
	(0.0)
	–
	(42.5)

	Administered other economic flows included in net result
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities
	
	0.5
	(0.3)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	2.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	2.2

	Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(0.1)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(0.1)

	Total administered other economic flows
	
	0.5
	(0.3)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.9
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	2.1

	Administered net result
	
	(40.1)
	(0.0)
	(0.3)
	(0.2)
	(0.1)
	0.0
	(0.2)
	(0.0)
	(0.6)
	(0.0)
	0.4
	0.5
	(0.0)
	–
	(40.4)


Note:

(i) Refer to Note 2 for output group definitions

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 23. Administered (non-controlled) items (continued)
In addition to the specific departmental operations which are included in the financial statements (comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement), the department administers or manages other activities and resources on behalf of the State. The transactions relating to these State activities are reported as administered items in this note. Administered transactions give rise to income, expenses, assets and liabilities and are determined on an accrual basis. Administered income includes taxes, fees and fines and the proceeds from the sale of administered surplus land and buildings. Administered assets include government income earned but yet to be collected. Administered liabilities include government expenses incurred but yet to be paid. Both the controlled department financial statements and these administered items are consolidated into the financial statements of the State.

	(a) Output group (i)
2014–15
	Note
	1

$M
	2

$M
	3

$M
	4

$M
	5

$M
	6

$M
	7

$M
	8

$M
	9

$M
	10

$M
	11

$M
	12

$M
	13

$M
	14

$M
	Total

$M

	Administered income from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Commonwealth contribution to the national health reform
	
	3,301.2
	–
	381.4
	–
	10.8
	90.6
	34.3
	45.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.4
	–
	3,863.7

	State contribution to the national health reform
	
	3,749.4
	–
	165.2
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	3,914.6

	Commonwealth grants
	
	10.9
	–
	–
	26.0
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	1.2
	–
	–
	–
	38.1

	Sales of goods and services
	
	281.1
	–
	5.8
	1.4
	0.2
	–
	–
	–
	13.8
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	302.3

	Interest income
	
	1.1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.1

	Fees
	
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	8.7
	0.2
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	8.9

	Grants and other income transfers
	
	80.4
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.2
	–
	0.0
	–
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	80.7

	Other
	
	10.3
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	0.3
	0.2
	–
	–
	–
	–
	11.1

	Total administered income from transactions
	
	7,434.4
	–
	552.4
	27.5
	11.0
	90.8
	43.1
	45.2
	14.1
	0.2
	1.2
	0.1
	0.5
	–
	8,220.5

	Administered expenses from transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grants and other expense transfers
	23(b)
	6,930.6
	–
	299.2
	–
	–
	0.2
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	7,230.1

	Other operating expenses
	
	0.2
	0.0
	0.1
	0.1
	0.0
	0.0
	0.1
	0.0
	0.1
	0.1
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0
	–
	0.9

	Payments into the consolidated fund
	
	312.0
	0.0
	5.8
	27.5
	0.2
	1.8
	8.7
	0.2
	8.5
	0.0
	0.7
	0.0
	0.5
	–
	365.9

	Payment to the departmental controlled entity
	
	196.0
	–
	209.3
	–
	10.8
	90.6
	34.3
	45.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	586.0

	Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	
	17.6
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	17.6

	Total administered expenses from transactions
	
	7,456.4
	0.0
	514.4
	27.6
	11.0
	92.6
	43.1
	45.2
	8.7
	0.2
	0.8
	0.1
	0.5
	–
	8,200.5

	Total administered net result from transactions
	
	(22.0)
	(0.0)
	38.0
	(0.1)
	(0.0)
	(1.8)
	(0.0)
	0.0
	5.4
	0.0
	0.5
	(0.0)
	(0.0)
	–
	20.0

	Administered other economic flows included in net result
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities
	
	0.0
	–
	(0.0)
	–
	–
	1.5
	–
	–
	0.0
	–
	0.0
	–
	–
	–
	1.6

	Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	
	(0.0)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(0.1)
	–
	0.0
	(0.0)
	–
	–
	(0.1)

	Total administered other economic flows
	
	0.0
	–
	(0.0)
	–
	–
	1.5
	–
	–
	(0.0)
	–
	0.0
	(0.0)
	–
	–
	1.5

	Administered net result
	
	(22.0)
	(0.0)
	38.0
	(0.1)
	(0.0)
	(0.2)
	(0.0)
	0.0
	5.4
	0.0
	0.5
	(0.0)
	(0.0)
	–
	21.5


Note:

(i) Refer to Note 2 for output group definitions

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 23 Administered (non-controlled) items (continued)

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	(b) Grants and other expense transfers
	
	

	Public hospitals
	
	

	Monash Health
	1,032.0
	962.9

	Alfred Health
	613.5
	580.8

	Eastern Health
	596.4
	559.5

	Melbourne Health
	530.0
	499.7

	Western Health
	516.7
	487.7

	Austin Health
	505.3
	482.2

	Barwon Health
	362.0
	339.8

	Royal Children’s Hospital
	361.7
	339.9

	St Vincent’s Hospital (Melbourne) Limited
	350.9
	333.7

	Peninsula Health
	343.4
	328.0

	Northern Health
	331.6
	302.5

	Mercy Public Hospitals Inc.
	242.3
	221.5

	Ballarat Health Services
	194.5
	183.1

	Bendigo Health Care Group
	184.7
	175.4

	The Royal Women’s Hospital
	182.8
	174.6

	Latrobe Regional Hospital
	136.2
	128.7

	Goulburn Valley Health
	126.3
	117.4

	South West Healthcare
	95.9
	90.3

	Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre
	93.6
	82.3

	Albury Wodonga Health
	93.4
	82.2

	Ramsay Health Care Limited
	80.8
	74.0

	Northeast Health Wangaratta
	76.6
	72.6

	The Royal Victorian Eye and Ear Hospital
	73.5
	69.0

	West Gippsland Health Care Group
	54.7
	52.2

	Central Gippsland Health Service
	48.4
	47.8

	Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
	46.7
	43.9

	Wimmera Health Care Group
	45.3
	42.8

	Echuca Regional Health
	39.2
	34.1

	Djerriwarrh Health Services
	38.2
	35.2

	Western District Health Service
	32.0
	31.6

	Swan Hill District Health
	28.5
	27.7

	Bass Coast Regional Health
	28.1
	26.3

	Calvary Health Care Bethlehem Limited
	21.9
	21.8

	Portland District Health
	21.7
	20.0

	Colac Area Health
	20.8
	20.1

	Castlemaine Health
	19.6
	17.1

	Gippsland Southern Health Service
	16.4
	15.9

	Benalla Health
	16.3
	15.7

	East Grampians Health Service
	14.9
	14.3

	Maryborough District Health Service
	14.8
	14.3

	Stawell Regional Health
	12.4
	11.9

	Kyabram District Health Services
	11.9
	11.5

	Other
	0.9
	38.0

	Total Grants and other expense transfers
	7,656.8
	7,230.0


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 24. Administered assets and liabilities

Administered assets include government revenues earned but yet to be collected.

Administered liabilities include government expenses incurred but yet to be paid.

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Administered assets
	
	

	Financial assets
	
	

	Trust funds
	1.6
	1.5

	Receivables
	7.8
	3.4

	Prepayments
	–
	38.0

	Loans
	3.3
	3.3

	Future service potential (i)
	9.8
	15.6

	Total administered assets
	22.5
	61.8

	Administered liabilities
	
	

	Financial liabilities
	
	

	Building redevelopment (i)
	9.8
	15.6

	Amounts payable to the consolidated fund
	7.7
	41.4

	Other
	4.9
	4.8

	Total administered liabilities
	22.5
	61.8

	Total administered net assets
	–
	–


Note:

(i) On behalf of the Department of Treasury and Finance, the department administers funding provided under a Health Service Agreement for building redevelopment at St Vincent’s Hospital of $9.8M (2015: $15.6M).

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 25. Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash flows from operating activities

	
	Note
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Net result for the year
	
	601.5
	3.0

	Non-cash movements
	
	
	

	(Gain)/loss on sale of non-financial assets
	6(a)
	(0.9)
	6.4

	Depreciation and amortisation
	5(b)
	280.7
	150.2

	Interest expense
	5(c)
	(0.5)
	–

	Change in net market values of VMIA liability
	
	38.5
	30.0

	Other Income
	
	(314.8)
	–

	Remeasurement of superannuation defined benefit plans
	
	0.9
	3.4

	Net gain/(loss) on financial assets
	
	(0.6)
	(1.8)

	Other gains or losses from other economic flows
	
	22.1
	22.6

	Resources (received)/provided free of charge
	
	0.3
	(1.1)

	Movements in assets and liabilities
	
	
	

	(Increase)/decrease in receivables
	
	(574.0)
	(300.5)

	(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
	
	10.2
	3.7

	Increase/(decrease) in payables
	
	237.0
	125.3

	Increase/(decrease) in provisions
	
	(7.7)
	(4.8)

	(Increase)/decrease in inventories
	
	0.7
	–

	Increase/(decrease) in income in advance
	
	(38.0)
	38.0

	Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
	
	255.3
	74.4


Note 26. Ex-gratia expenses

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Compensation for economic loss
	2.8
	1.6

	Total ex-gratia expenses (i)
	2.8
	1.6


Note:

(i) The total for ex-gratia expenses is also presented in ‘other operating expenses’ of Note 5(e) Expenses from transactions.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 27. Annotated income agreements

The following is a listing of annotated income agreements under Section 29 of the Financial Management Act 1994 approved by the Treasurer.

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	User charges, or sales of goods and services
	
	

	Albury Wodonga Health (Capital)
	1.4
	4.4

	Albury Wodonga Health (Output)
	98.3
	93.7

	Community Residential Units Accommodation charges includes full Board and Lodging Model (Output)
	26.0
	13.0

	Department of Veteran Affairs Hospital Services
	124.5
	128.3

	Health Technology Services (formerly Health Shared Services)
	6.5
	3.0

	Seniors Card Directory Advertising
	0.4
	0.4

	Seniors Festival Advertising and Sponsorship
	0.2
	0.1

	Transport Accident Commission Agreement
	76.7
	62.4

	
	334.1
	305.3

	Asset sales
	
	

	Proceeds from sale of land and buildings (Capital)
	2.0
	–

	Commonwealth Specific Purpose Payments
	
	

	National Partnership Agreements
	
	

	Adult Public Dental Services (Output)
	38.5
	–

	Albury-Wodonga Cardiac Catheterisation Laboratory (Capital)
	0.5
	–

	Bright Hospital Feasibility Study
	0.1
	0.1

	Essential Vaccines
	33.7
	59.5

	Expansion of the BreastScreen Australia Program
	3.9
	3.8

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Albury-Wodonga Regional Cancer Centre (Capital)
	16.0
	16.9

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Bairnsdale Regional Health Service – Jacaranda House Redevelopment (Capital)
	0.3
	0.8

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Ballarat Health Dental Clinic (Capital)
	–
	5.3

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Barwon Integrated Regional Cancer Service, Geelong (Capital)
	2.0
	9.8

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Colac Area Youth Health Hub (Capital)
	–
	0.1

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Echuca Regional Health Redevelopment (Capital)
	2.4
	3.0

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Expansion of Gippsland Cancer Care Centre (Capital)
	–
	2.0

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Heathcote GP Primary Care Clinic (Capital)
	0.2
	0.8

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Kerang District Hospital Redevelopment (Capital)
	3.7
	5.6

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Kilmore District Hospital Redevelopment (Capital)
	2.5
	1.0

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Kyabram and District Health Service – Health and Wellbeing Centre (Capital)
	0.5
	0.5

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Kyneton Ambulatory Care Centre (Capital)
	0.8
	3.0

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Leongatha Integrated Primary Care Centre (Capital)
	0.4
	–

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Mansfield District Hospital – Co-location of Primary Health Care Services (Capital)
	0.2
	0.7

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Mildura Base Hospital (Capital)
	–
	3.0

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Numurkah District Health Service (Capital)
	–
	0.4

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Rural North West Health, Warracknabeal Campus Redevelopment Stage 2 (Capital)
	4.3
	2.7

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Statewide Enhancements to Regional Cancer Services (Capital)
	1.0
	0.5

	Health and Hospitals Fund – Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre (Capital)
	50.0
	67.0


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 27. Annotated income agreements (continued)
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Health Services – National Bowel Cancer Screening Program
	0.8
	0.6

	Health Services – National Perinatal Depression Initiative
	–
	1.9

	Health Services – OzFoodNet
	0.3
	0.3

	Health Services – Vaccine-Preventable Diseases Surveillance Program
	0.2
	0.2

	Health Services – Victorian Cytology Service
	9.3
	8.9

	Home and Community Care
	430.6
	404.9

	Homes for the Homeless – Homelessness (Output)
	22.8
	11.4

	Improving Local Access to Health Care on Phillip Island (Capital)
	0.5
	–

	Indigenous Teenage Sexual and Reproductive Health and Young Parent Support
	–
	1.5

	Oncology Day Treatment Centre at Frankston Hospital
	–
	0.7

	Pay Equity for the Social and Community Services Sector – Health component (Output)
	28.0
	4.2

	Supporting National Mental Health Reform (Capital)
	–
	2.0

	Supporting National Mental Health Reform (Output)
	7.6
	7.5

	Treating More Public Dental Patients
	–
	31.9

	Warrnambool Integrated Regional Cancer Care Centre
	–
	10.0

	Other
	
	

	Aged Care Assessment
	27.9
	26.0

	Human Quarantine Services
	0.1
	0.1

	Integrated Regional Clinical Training Networks
	0.9
	1.6

	National Radiation Oncology Projects Funding
	–
	0.1

	National Reform Agenda for Organ and Tissue Donation
	9.1
	8.7

	National Youth Week
	0.1
	–

	Palliative Care Projects
	–
	0.2

	Simulated Learning Environments Program
	0.1
	0.3

	Unattached Refugee Children (Output)
	1.3
	1.2

	Women’s Safety Measures – Keeping Women Safe in Their Homes
	0.7
	–

	Women’s Safety Measures – Local Support Coordinator
	0.1
	–

	
	701.0
	710.7

	Total Section 29 annotated income agreements
	1,037.1
	1,016.0


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 28. Trust account balances relating to trust accounts controlled and/or administered by the department
The following is a listing of trust account balances relating to trust accounts controlled and administered by the department. During 2015–16, there were no trust accounts closed or new trust accounts opened.
	
	2016
	2015

	
	Open-ing balance as at 1 July 2015
trust account balance

$M
	Mach-inery of Govern-ment transfer in

$M
	Total receipts

$M
	Total pay-ments

$M
	Non-Cash Move-ment

$M
	Closing balance as at 30 June 2016
trust account balance

$M
	Open-ing balance as at 1 July 2014
trust account balance

$M
	Mach-inery of Govern-ment transfer in

$M
	Total receipts

$M
	Total pay-ments

$M
	Non-Cash Move-ment

$M
	Closing balance as at 30 June 2015
trust account balance

$M

	Controlled trusts
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Casey Hospital Escrow Account

This trust was established to manage and control payments to the contractor for the completion of the Casey Hospital refurbishment.
	4.0
	–
	–
	–
	(0.7)
	3.2
	4.2
	–
	–
	–
	(0.2)
	4.0

	Health State Managed Fund

This trust was established under the Health (Commonwealth State Funding Arrangements) Act 2012 No. 40 of 2012 for the purpose of receiving funding for block grants, teaching, training and research.
	0.0
	–
	1,102.8
	1,102.6
	(0.2)
	–
	–
	–
	1,010.5
	1,010.5
	0.0
	0.0

	Hospital and Charities Fund

This account was established under the Health Services Act 1988 to record funding for health service agencies. Monies are paid into the fund from the Gambling Regulation Act No. 114 of 2003, Casino Control Act No. 47 of 1991 and Sec. 10 of the Financial Management Act 1994.
	88.1
	–
	6,181.4
	6,189.7
	(24.8)
	55.0
	45.7
	–
	5,974.4
	6,029.1
	97.1
	88.1

	Intellectually Handicapped Children’s Amenities Fund

Intellectually Disabled Persons Act 1986 repealed by the Disability Act 2006. To meet the cost of the provision of amenities for children under the age of 16 years in the care of the department.
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.1
	–
	0.1
	–
	–
	–
	0.1


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 28. Trust account balances relating to trust accounts controlled and/or administered by the department (continued)
	
	2016
	2015

	
	Open-ing balance as at 1 July 2015
trust account balance

$M
	Mach-inery of Govern-ment transfer in

$M
	Total receipts

$M
	Total pay-ments

$M
	Non-Cash Move-ment

$M
	Closing balance as at 30 June 2016
trust account balance

$M
	Open-ing balance as at 1 July 2014
trust account balance

$M
	Mach-inery of Govern-ment transfer in

$M
	Total receipts

$M
	Total pay-ments

$M
	Non-Cash Move-ment

$M
	Closing balance as at 30 June 2015
trust account balance

$M

	Mental Hospitals Fund

Gaming Regulation Act 2003.

For the establishment and maintenance of mental health services and residential institutions and facilities; for the administration of the Mental Health Act 1986; for the administration of the Disability Act 2006 .
	2.1
	–
	63.9
	63.9
	–
	2.1
	–
	2.1
	32.0
	32.0
	–
	2.1

	Public Health Fund

This trust was established by the Minister for Finance in accordance with the National Health Reform Agreement to allow the Department of Health & Human Services to access public health funding contributions paid by the Commonwealth through the National Health Funding Pool and apply this funding to deliver public health activities managed by the State.
	5.1
	–
	127.3
	125.9
	(2.5)
	3.9
	5.1
	–
	121.8
	122.0
	0.1
	5.1

	State Development Special Projects Trust Account

Established under the Financial Management Act 1994 to assist in facilitating, encouraging, promoting and carrying out activities leading to a balanced economic development of the state.
	2.7
	–
	27.0
	27.6
	(0.0)
	2.0
	–
	–
	6.1
	9.6
	6.2
	2.7

	Treasury Trust

To record the receipt and disbursement of unclaimed monies and other funds held in trust.
	49.1
	–
	105.4
	95.9
	(0.4)
	58.1
	22.8
	34.1
	64.3
	71.5
	(0.6)
	49.1

	Vehicle Lease Trust Account

To record transactions relating to the Government’s vehicle pool and fleet management business.
	14.6
	–
	2.7
	(2.5)
	(0.0)
	19.7
	0.8
	10.5
	1.1
	(1.0)
	1.1
	14.6

	Victorian Health Promotion Fund

This account was established under the Tobacco Act 1987 , section 32, prior to the abolition by the High Court in July 1997 of taxes on tobacco products. Following the High Court decision, the Act was amended and the source of funding was specified by the Treasurer under sec 32 (3a).
	–
	–
	37.6
	37.6
	–
	–
	–
	–
	36.9
	36.9
	–
	–

	Total controlled trusts
	165.8
	–
	7,648.0
	7,640.8
	(28.7)
	144.2
	78.6
	46.8
	7,247.1
	7,310.6
	103.7
	165.8


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 28. Trust account balances relating to trust accounts controlled and/or administered by the department (continued)

	
	2016
	2015

	
	Open-ing balance as at 1 July 2015
trust account balance

$M
	Mach-inery of Govern-ment transfer in

$M
	Total receipts

$M
	Total pay-ments

$M
	Non-Cash Move-ment

$M
	Closing balance as at 30 June 2016
trust account balance

$M
	Open-ing balance as at 1 July 2014
trust account balance

$M
	Mach-inery of Govern-ment transfer in

$M
	Total receipts

$M
	Total pay-ments

$M
	Non-Cash Move-ment

$M
	Closing balance as at 30 June 2015
trust account balance

$M

	Administered trusts
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Anzac Day Proceeds Fund, Act 6198, Sec. 4A

Established under the ANZAC Day Act 1958 to receive funds as required to be paid by the Anzac Day Act 1958 and the Racing Act 1958 and to be credited to the Victorian Veterans Fund.
	0.1
	–
	0.0
	0.0
	–
	0.0
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0.1
	0.1

	National Health Funding Pool – Victorian State Pool Fund

This trust was established under the Health (Commonwealth State Funding Arrangements) Act 2012 No. 40 of 2012 to record funding made available by the Commonwealth and the State under the National Health Reform Agreement.
	0.0
	–
	8,316.3
	8,354.3
	38.0
	0.0
	–
	–
	7,853.8
	7,815.8
	(38.0)
	0.0

	Public Service Commuter Club

The trust fund was established to record the receipt of amounts associated with the Public Service Commuter Club Scheme and deductions from club members salaries as well as recording payment to the Public Transport Corporation.
	(0.6)
	–
	1.3
	1.3
	–
	(0.7)
	–
	(0.6)
	0.9
	0.9
	–
	(0.6)

	Revenue Suspense Account

Short term clearing account pending correct identification of receipts.
	2.1
	–
	0.2
	–
	–
	2.4
	0.3
	1.8
	(0.0)
	–
	–
	2.1

	Victorian Natural Disasters Relief Fund

This account was established for the purpose of granting assistance to persons who suffer losses as a result of flood, bushfires and other natural disasters.
	(0.1)
	–
	1.3
	1.2
	–
	(0.0)
	0.4
	0.0
	0.3
	0.3
	(0.5)
	(0.1)

	Total administered trusts
	1.5
	–
	8,319.2
	8,356.8
	38.0
	1.7
	0.7
	1.2
	7,855.0
	7,817.0
	(38.4)
	1.5


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 28. Trust account balances (continued)

(b) Third party funds under management

Third party funds under management are funds held in trust for certain clients. They are not used for government purposes and therefore not included in the department’s financial statements.

In February 2009, the Minister for Finance approved the establishment of the 2009 Victorian Bushfire Appeal Trust Account in the Public Account, as part of the Trust Fund, pursuant to section 19(1) of the Financial Management Act 1994 .

The purpose of the trust account is the receipt of donations and other contributions, and their disbursement for assistance to individuals and communities in towns, suburbs and rural areas affected by the 2009 Victorian bushfires. Contributions include funds provided by the Victorian, Commonwealth and other jurisdictions, as well as the general public, for the above purpose.

Pursuant to section 21 of the Financial Management Act 1994, monies from the 2009 Victorian Bushfire Appeal Trust Account have been invested as allowed under the Trustee Act 1958. Interest earned is credited to the trust account.
	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	2009 Victorian Bushfire Appeal Trust account
	
	

	Cash at bank
	3.1
	5.9

	Receivable
	0.1
	0.2

	Total funds under management
	3.1
	6.0

	Balance of funds brought forward 1 July 2015
	6.0
	10.6

	Interest earned
	0.1
	0.3

	Total funds available
	6.1
	10.9

	Payments to individuals and communities
	2.9
	4.9

	Total payments
	2.9
	4.9

	Balance carried forward
	3.1
	6.0


Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 29. Investments accounted for using the equity method

The department has a joint venture interest with Monash University in the Australian Regenerative Medical Institute (ARMI). ARMI was established to construct and operate a facility which will promote Victoria as a global leader in regenerative medical research, foster and develop existing research collaboration on domestic and overseas projects, and provide a major site for undergraduate and post graduate training programs.

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Non-current investments in jointly controlled entities
	35.0 
	35.0

	Total
	35.0
	35.0


	Name of entity
	Principal activity
	Ownership Interest % (i)

	
	
	2016
	2015

	Jointly controlled entities
	 
	

	Australian Regenerative Medicine Institute (ARMI).
	To construct and operate a regenerative medical research facility.
	20
	20


Note:

(i) The interest of the department in the joint venture is 20% in accordance with the agreement. The fair value of the ownership interest held by the department is equal to the value of cash invested in the Joint Venture which amounts to $35M at 30 June 2016.

Summarised financial information of jointly controlled entities

At balance date, the department’s share of net assets and the net result after tax of its jointly controlled entities are:

	
	2016

$M
	2015

$M

	Current assets
	0.3
	0.3

	Non-current assets
	118.9
	124.1

	Total assets
	119.2
	124.4

	Current liabilities
	–
	–

	Non-current liabilities
	–
	–

	Total liabilities
	–
	–

	Net assets
	119.2
	124.4

	Share of jointly controlled entity’s net assets
	35.0
	35.0

	Share of jointly controlled entity’s result after tax
	–
	–

	Dividends received from jointly controlled entity
	–
	–


Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

The department’s share of the contingent liabilities, capital commitments, and other expenditure commitments of its jointly controlled entities are disclosed in Notes 21 and 22 respectively.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
Note 30. Subsequent event

The Director of Housing (Director) is undertaking a staged title transfer of Director owned properties to Aboriginal Housing Victoria. The first tranche of approximately 500 units located in the metropolitan area (approximately one third of AHV’s management portfolio) was transferred on 28 July 2016. Two subsequent tranches will follow in 2017–18 and 2018–19, subject to AHV continuing to meet and maintain the Housing Registrar’s organisational performance metrics.

The transfer of property titles at zero cash consideration is in acknowledgement that the social and economic circumstances, and the disadvantage experienced by Aboriginal Victorian tenants, presents a challenge to the efficient delivery of housing services by AHV while maintaining high standards of housing and the organisation’s continued financial sustainability.

The intention to transfer the properties to Aboriginal Housing Victoria is underpinned by the principle of self-determination. This will assist Aboriginal Housing Victoria to provide culturally appropriate social housing for Aboriginal Victorians and to develop innovative solutions to promote socio-economic independence among Aboriginal Victorians.

The financial implications of the title transfer to Aboriginal Housing Victoria are outlined below:

· The cumulative book value of the properties (at 30 June 2016) to be transferred to AHV in 2016–17 is estimated at $202.4 million.

The title transfer will reduce the Balance Sheets and record an expense in the Comprehensive Operating Statements of the Director and the department by $202.4 million.
